
 
 

 

 
 
 
DYDD IAU, 16 CHWEFROR 2023 
 
 
AT: HOLL AELODAU Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU LLE, CYNALIADWYEDD 
A NEWID HINSAWDD 
 
 
 
YR WYF DRWY HYN YN EICH GALW I FYNYCHU CYFARFOD O’R 
PWYLLGOR CRAFFU LLE, CYNALIADWYEDD A NEWID HINSAWDD 
A GYNHELIR YN Y SIAMBR, NEUADD Y SIR, CAERFYRDDIN, SA31 
1JP AC O BELL AM 10.00 YB  DYDD GWENER, 24 CHWEFROR, 
2023 ER MWYN CYFLAWNI'R MATERION A AMLINELLIR AR YR 
AGENDA SYDD YNGHLWM 
 
 

Wendy Walters 

PRIF WEITHREDWR 
 
 
Swyddog Democrataidd: Emma Bryer 
Ffôn (llinell uniongyrchol): 01267 224029 
E-Bost: EBryer@sirgar.gov.uk 

 
Cyfarfod aml-leoliad yw hwn.  Gall aelodau’r pwyllgor fynychu’n bersonol yn y 
lleoliad a nodir uchod neu o bell drwy’r ddolen Zoom a ddarperir ar wahân. 

Gellir gwylio’r cyfarfod ar wefan y cyngor drwy'r ddolen canlynol:- 
https://carmarthenshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 

 
Wendy Walters Prif Weithredwr, Chief Executive, 

Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP 
County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP 

 
 
 

Pecyn Dogfennau

https://carmarthenshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 

 
 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU LLE, CYNALIADWYEDD A NEWID HINSAWDD 
13 Aelodau 

 
 
 

GRŴP PLAID CYMRU -  6 Aelodau 
 

1.  Cyng.Karen Davies (Is-Gadeirydd)  
2.  Cyng.Arwel Davies (Aelod y Pwyllgor)  
3.  Cyng.Colin Evans (Aelod y Pwyllgor)  
4.  Cyng.Neil Lewis (Aelod y Pwyllgor)  
5.  Cyng.Dorian Phillips (Aelod y Pwyllgor)  
6.  Cyng.Gareth Thomas (Aelod y Pwyllgor)  

 
GRŴP LLAFUR  -  5 Aelodau 
 
1.  Cyng.Peter Cooper (Aelod y Pwyllgor)  
2.  Cyng.Shelly Godfrey-Coles (Aelod y Pwyllgor)  
3.  Cyng.Tina Higgins (Aelod y Pwyllgor) 

Cyng.John James (Cadeirydd) 
 

4.  Cyng.Gary Jones (Aelod y Pwyllgor)  
 

GRŴP ANNIBYNNOL  - 2 Aelodau 
 
1.  Cyng.Sue Allen (Aelod y Pwyllgor)  

Lle Gwag 
 
 



 

 
 

A G E N D A   
  

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB   
 
2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL GAN GYNNWYS 

UNRHYW CHWIPIAU PLEIDIAU A RODDIR MEWN YMATEB I 
UNRHYW EITEM AR YR AGENDA.  

 

 
3. CWESTIYNAU GAN Y CYHOEDD (NID OEDD DIM WEDI DOD I 

LAW)  
 

 
4. STRATEGAETH COED A CHOETIR AR GYFER CYNGOR SIR 

CAERFYRDDIN 2023-2028  
5 - 42 

 
5. LEFELAU FFOSFFADAU MEWN ARDALOEDD CADWRAETH 

ARBENNIG AFONOL GWARCHODEDIG - DIWEDDARIAD  
43 - 50 

 
6. EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL  51 - 60 
 
7. LLOFNODI YN GOFNOD CYWIR COFNODION Y CYFARFOD A 

GYNHALIWYD AR 23 IONAWR 2023  
61 - 70 

 



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

 
Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU 

LLE, CYNALIADWYEDD A NEWID HINSAWDD  
24 CHWEFROR 2023 

 

STRATEGAETH COED A CHOETIR AR GYFER  
CYNGOR SIR CAERFYRDDIN 2023-2028 

Y Pwrpas:   
Rhoi gwybod i'r Pwyllgor Craffu am y cynnydd sy'n cael ei wneud o ran datblygu a 
darparu Strategaeth Coed a Choetir ar gyfer Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin. 
 
GOFYNNIR I'R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU:- 
 
Adolygu ac asesu'r wybodaeth sydd wedi ei chynnwys yn yr Adroddiad a darparu 
unrhyw argymhellion, sylwadau, neu gyngor i'r Aelod Cabinet a/neu Gyfarwyddwr 
cyn i'r adroddiad gael ei ystyried gan y Cabinet. 
 
Y Rheswm/Y Rhesymau 
 
Llunio sylwadau i'w rhoi gerbron y Cabinet / Cyngor i'w hystyried.  
 
YR AELOD CABINET SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-   
Y Cynghorydd Aled Vaughan Owen, Yr Aelod Cabinet dros Newid Hinsawdd, 
Datgarboneiddio a Chynaliadwyedd 

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth 
Enw Pennaeth y 
Gwasanaeth: 

Rhodri D Griffiths 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad: 

Rosie Carmichael 
 

 
Swyddi: 

 
Pennaeth Lle a Chynaliadwyedd 
 

 
 
Rheolwr Cadwraeth Wledig 
 

 
Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 

 
RDGriffiths@sirgar.gov.uk 
 

 
 
RACarmichael@sirgar.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Tudalen 5

Eitem Rhif  4

mailto:RDGriffiths@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:RACarmichael@sirgar.gov.uk


 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

PLACE, SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE CHANGE 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

24TH FEBRUARY 2023 
 
 

 
A TREE AND WOODLAND STRATEGY FOR CARMARTHENSHIRE 

COUNTY COUNCIL 2023-2028. 
 
1. SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT. 
 
The purpose of the report is to draw Scrutiny’s attention to the progress being 
made in developing and delivering a strategy for the trees and woodlands for 
which CCC is responsible. 
 
The strategy addresses CCC’s responsibilities for managing trees and 
woodlands as well as opportunities for new planting. It includes the actions CCC 
will take to deliver this strategy across its services.  
 
The strategy highlights the role which trees and woodlands play in delivering the 
concept of place-making and the delivery of green infrastructure as set out in 
Planning Policy Wales 11. It sets out how the delivery of a Tree and Woodland 
Strategy, is consistent with the goals of the Well-being of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015, and Carmarthenshire’s Well Being Objective 3. It proposes 
that in responding to the Climate and a Nature Emergencies which it has 
declared, CCC needs to ensure that it manages its trees and woodlands 
appropriately and that it plants more.   
 
The preparation of the strategy is consistent with the Tree and Woodland 
Strategy Tool Kit for Local Authorities, published by the Tree Council in January 
2023. It is proposed that the strategy will be reviewed after 5 years. 
 
The development and delivery of the strategy will enable CCC to develop a long-
term approach to managing its existing trees and woodlands and to new 
planting. It will ensure that it is planting the right tree, in the right place and for 
the right reasons. Identification of the most suitable areas to plant new trees and 
woodland will continue to be informed by the consideration of other land use 
requirements e.g., land required for renewable energy, for nature recovery, and 
for agricultural use. Decisions will be informed by the best available science.  
 
 

Tudalen 6



 

The UK Climate Change Committee’s recommends that the UK needs to 
establish at least 19% woodland cover by 2050 to mitigate for the effects of 
climate change. The strategy proposes that CCC should aim to increase the 
woodland cover on its land portfolio to 19% over the same period, without 
compromising other essential land uses.  
 
CCC owns 6500ha land. It is calculated that 5.34% of the CCC estate is wooded 
i.e., 347ha. If CCC is to increase the woodland cover on its land from 5.34% to 
19%, or a total of 1,235ha, it will require that CCC plants 888ha of woodland by 
2050, or on average 33ha p.a.  
 
To deliver the strategy, an inter-departmental officer working group has been set 
up to agree actions and report on their delivery. This group will build on the work 
of CCC’s Strategic Land-Use Review group. The Climate Change and Nature 
Emergency Advisory Panel will be kept informed regarding the delivery of the 
strategy. 
 
CCC’s Ash Dieback Strategy is included in Appendix 1 of the report. 
 
The development and delivery of a Tree and Woodland Strategy for CCC will 
enable CCC to work in an integrated way across its services to ensure that it: 

- manages its trees and woodlands appropriately  
- takes action to plant more trees and woodlands across its land portfolio  
- allocates the resources required to maintain these. 

 
The adoption of a strategy to manage this natural resource is considered 
appropriate. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES  
 

 
 

Tudalen 7



 

 
IMPLICATIONS  

 

 
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report : 
 
Signed:  Rhodri Griffiths                                                                 Head of Place and Sustainability                            
 

 
Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and 
Equalities 
 

Legal  Finance  ICT  Risk 
Management 
Issues  

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets   

YES  
 

YES  
 

YES  
 

NONE  
 

YES  
 

NONE  
 
 

YES  
 

 
1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities 

Adoption and delivery of the Tree and Woodland Strategy will enable CCC to 
demonstrate that it is delivering Well-being Objective 3 - Enabling our 
communities and environment to be healthy, safe and prosperous. 

2. Legal   

The delivery of a Tree and Woodland Strategy will contribute to the evidence that 
CCC is delivering its Section 6 Biodiversity Duty as per the Environment Act 
(Wales) 2016 “to maintain and enhance biodiversity and promote ecosystem 
resilience”. Delivery of the strategy will be an action in CCC’s next Environment 
Act Forward plan on which it reports to WG in December 2025.  This reporting is 
a legal requirement. It will also evidence that CCC is delivering the Resilience 
Goal in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 

 
 

3. Finance   

 Delivery of the Tree and Woodland Strategy will impact on finance. To date when 
CCC has been able to manage or plant trees and woodland, this has usually 
been financed through grant aid. Grant aid is expected to continue to cover much 
of the cost of planting new trees and woodlands, however there are instances 
where grant aid does not cover 100% of costs and additional finance will have to 
be sought.  Grant aid is not always available for the maintenance of trees and 
woodlands, without which new planting schemes may fail. 
 
 

Tudalen 8



 

As part of CCC’s Ash Dieback project it funds the planting of some trees and 
woodland to compensate for the losses of Ash. 
Finance is likely to be required to undertake the compliance checking which is an 
essential part of both CCC’s project delivery and its Development Management 
service. Compliance checking is essential if CCC is to demonstrate delivery of 
tree and woodland planting, as well as the delivery of other green and blue 
infrastructure. 

 

5. Risk Management Issues 

The Tree and Woodland Strategy references CCC’s management of tree safety 
and Ash-Dieback. Professional management of these issues by competent 
officers reduces the corporate risk associated with tree failures. Tree safety is the 
primary driver of CCC’s approach to tree management. 

6. Physical Assets   
The delivery of the Tree and Woodland Strategy proposed will impact on CCC’s 
physical assets. Tree and woodland planting will take place on CCC land and the 
exiting trees and woodland which CCC own will be managed. 
7. Staffing Implications 

CCC does have staff in place that already deliver some aspects of the strategy. 
To address the delivery of green infrastructure and the design, checking and 
compliance issues relevant to landscaping and tree planting schemes delivered 
by CCC and development generally, additional staff resources will be required. 

 
CABINET MEMBER  
PORTFOLIO HOLDER 
AWARE/CONSULTED  
 
YES 
 

The preparation of a Tree and Woodland Strategy for 
CCC is welcomed, as is the setting up of an inter-
departmental officer working group that will ensure the 
delivery of the strategy across the authority. The 
ambitious targets the strategy sets for the management 
of our existing trees and the planting of new woodland 
on CCC land are welcomed. It is proposed that the 
strategy will be reviewed in 2028 to ensure that the 
approaches it sets out remain consistent with evolving 
policy and science.  
 
It is requested that the progress in delivering of the 
strategy is reported to CCC’s Cross Party Advisory 
Panel on Climate Change and Nature Emergency. 
 
AVO  31/01/2023 
 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 

Tudalen 9



 

 
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW      
 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref 
No. 

Locations that the papers are available for public 
inspection  

CCC’s Tree Safety 
Management Strategy Sept 
2019 (currently being 
updated)  

N/A https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/
1221301/ccc-tree-management-strategy.pdf 

Tree and Woodland 
Strategy Tool Kit for Local 
Authorities, published by 
the Woodland Trust in Jan 
2023 
 

N/A https://treecouncil.org.uk/what-we-do/science-
and-research/tree-strategies/ 

 
 
 

Tudalen 10

https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1221301/ccc-tree-management-strategy.pdf
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1221301/ccc-tree-management-strategy.pdf
https://treecouncil.org.uk/what-we-do/science-and-research/tree-strategies/
https://treecouncil.org.uk/what-we-do/science-and-research/tree-strategies/


 

 

Strategy for Trees and Woodland 
2023-2028 

Carmarthenshire County Council  
Rural Conservation Section – Place and Sustainability 

 

 CCC’s Strategy for Trees and Woodlands 2023-2028 
See also:  
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1221301/ccc-tree-management-strategy.pdf 

www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/planning/biodiversity/ash-dieback-disease/# 
 

 
1. INTRODUCTION – WHY A TREE AND WOODLAND STRATEGY? 

 
The delivery of a Tree and Woodland strategy will enable CCC to demonstrate that it is delivering against both the Nature Emergency and the Climate 
Change Emergency which it and Welsh Government have declared. Successful delivery of the proposed strategy will provide nature-based solutions, 
relevant to these linked agendas. By managing our trees and woodlands appropriately and by planting more trees and more woodland in the right places, 
for the right reasons, we will go some way to mitigating both emergencies and delivering the numerous other benefits which trees and woodlands provide.  
 
In addition, this strategy has been prepared in response to item 23 of Carmarthenshire County Council Moving Forward in Carmarthenshire: the next 5 
years (2017 – 2022): - 
 
23. Promote a tree strategy to improve the environment and mitigate the effects of air and noise pollution in our more populated areas. 
  
However, this strategy is broader in its remit than Action 23 and it reflects CCC’s wider management responsibilities for trees and woodlands across its 
estate, and where and why it would like to plant more trees and woodland, and the steps it need to take in order to do this. It sets out priorities for action. 
 
At present the remit of this strategy is restricted to CCC owned or managed land, and adjoining land where tree issue impact on CCC’s responsibilities e.g., 
trees on private land adjacent to the highway. 
In recognition of its wider responsibilities across the county CCC will continue to run the Coed Cymru project, providing advice to private woodland owners 
on management. 
CCC will continue to comment on NRW Forest Resource Plans for the WG Woodland Estate and larger new planting schemes in Special Landscape 
Areas, or similar. 
 
It is advised that the strategy is reviewed in 2028. 

T
udalen 11

https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1221301/ccc-tree-management-strategy.pdf
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/planning/biodiversity/ash-dieback-disease/


 

 

 
Trees and woodlands provide a wealth of benefits 
Trees provide us with many benefits, they create a sense of place. Trees, and places with trees are recognised as having a positive impact on mental and 
physical health: they are places where people choose to relax and exercise. They are key components of Green Infrastructure initiatives.  

 
We are regularly reminded of the environmental benefits associated with trees and woodlands; they absorb and store greenhouse gases, and sequester 
carbon, helping to mitigate climate change, they can help improve air quality, reduce noise pollution, and they create a cooling effect in built up areas. Trees 
can help reduce flooding by increasing absorption and infiltration of surface water, and they provide a habitat for wildlife and contributing to ecological 
connectivity and ecosystem resilience, they enhance the landscape. In addition to the above, the trees and woodlands in our agricultural landscapes provide 
timber and firewood, shelter for stock, they intercept agricultural run-off (phosphates etc) and their establishment can improve the workings of the farm in 
terms of Health and Safety by reducing the number of agricultural operation on e.g. steep slopes. 
Trees and woodlands have an economic value, they usually increase property values, and making areas more attractive to investors. They create attractive 
areas in town centres where people use shops and restaurants and will choose to spend time. A green environment makes for a better work environment; 
employees who have views of trees and access to areas with trees feel happier and perform better. Visual Amenity Value of trees in monetary terms can be 
calculated by the Helliwell or the Tempo System, and we are increasingly aware of the benefits to both our physical and mental health of spending time in 
wooded or environments with trees. 
 
The strategy reflects the fact that well managed trees and woodland provide multiple benefits. 
 
 
 

2. FORMAT OF THE STRATEGY  
 
The strategy is set out in tables which address CCC’s different service areas. Delivery of the actions it contains will address different responsibilities and 
agendas: 
 

• Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
• Carmarthenshire’s Well-being Plan (PSB) and Carmarthenshire County Councill’s Well-being Objectives Well-being Objective 3 - Enabling our 

communities and environment to be healthy, safe, and prosperous 
• Environment Act (Wales) 2016 
• Carmarthenshire County Council’s Environment Act Forward Plan 2023-2025 
• Planning Policy Wales 11 – with reference to both Chapter 6 and to Green and Blue Infrastructure 
• The declaration by the Welsh Government and CCC of both a Climate and Nature Emergency, and the role trees and woodland have in mitigating 

climate change and delivering opportunities for Nature Recovery. 
• It is consistent with the Well Manged Highway Infrastructure – A Code of Practice 2016 
• Design Commission for Wales Placemaking Charter to which CCC is a signatory 

 
 
  

T
udalen 12



 

 

3. THE GUIDING PRINCIPLES OF THE STRATEGY: 
 
The 10 guiding principles developed by Royal Botanic Gardens, Kew and Botanic Gardens Conservation International (BGCI) provide guiding 
principles for managing and planting new trees and woodlands. CCC is adopting these principles in delivering its tree strategy:  
  

1. Protect existing forests – we should all take measures to combat de-forestation and the loss of trees  
2. Work together with local people – new tree and woodland planting works best when it provides additional benefits for local communities  
3. Manage existing woodlands and design new woodlands to maximise biodiversity recovery and meet multiple goals such 
as increasing biodiversity, helping the local economy, reducing carbon emissions, providing accessible Green Infrastructure  
4. Select appropriate areas for new tree and woodland planting - Some areas such as peatlands, species-rich grasslands and wetlands 
already contribute significantly to carbon sequestration, in addition to the other ecosystem services that they provide. These areas are not suitable 
for tree planting as trees can displace the existing biodiversity and do more harm than good. Some of the best places to plant trees are those from 
which woodland has been lost  
Aim to improve the overall extent and ecological connectivity provided by new trees and woodland areas, and look to connect or expand existing 
woodlands  
5. Use natural regeneration wherever possible - Let nature do the work for you. Natural regeneration is the process through which a 
woodland regrows after a piece of land has been abandoned, or when a woodland begins to restore itself after trees have been removed. It is often 
cheaper, easier and more cost effective. Carbon capture in naturally regenerated land can be 40 times higher than in a conventional plantation  
6. Select species to maximise biodiversity – introduce a variety of native species that will thrive in the chosen location, this will help to create 
a new woodland habitat which will be rich in native biodiversity and will be more resilient and less prone to disease. The planting of non-native trees 
can be appropriate in more urban landscapes and in areas with planned or historic landscapes. Creating new woodland is not just about getting 
trees in the ground, it is about providing the building blocks of a new ecosystem   
7. Use resilient plant material – aim for genetic diversity in the planting stock and consider how the climate of the immediate area may 
change and make informed choices as to seed collection.  
8. Plan ahead for infrastructure, capacity and seed supply. Work with your local community, provide training and share skills and knowledge 
regarding collection, storage, and planting of seed. Employing people from the local area helps bolster local economies.  
9. Learn by doing – research proposals, trial ideas and methods, monitor and adapt  
10. Make it pay – realise the economic benefits of a new or regenerating woodland – use the area as a site for local people to enjoy informally 
or for more formal activities. Regular access to woodlands and trees is beneficial for physical and mental well-being at many levels 

 
 
 
Other approaches to setting targets for increasing the trees and woodland cover in our landscapes: 
 
Welsh Government Targets  
To plant 43,000ha of new woodland by 2030 
 
UK Committee and Climate Change and the Woodland Trust’s Emergency Tree Plan for the UK (Jan 2020) 

T
udalen 13



 

 

Woodland cover in the UK is currently c.13%. In Scotland it is 19%, Wales 15%, England 10% and in Northern Ireland 9%. In Carmarthenshire it is 14.4% 
(NRW).  Woodland cover in the UK is one of the lowest in Europe (Spain 37%; Germany and Italy 32%; France 31%) 
The Woodland Trust’s Emergency Tree Plan 2021 states that 17-19% woodland cover is recommended by the UK Committee on Climate Change if the UK 
is to be carbon neutral by 2050, i.e., an almost 50% increase in woodland cover from what we have today. If Wales is to increase its woodland cover to 
19% this will require roughly a 50% increase in woodland. WG Draft Sustainable Farming Scheme, promotes the requirement that all agricultural holdings 
in receipt of support should be made up of at least 10% woodland cover. 

 
 

5. A TREE AND WOODLAND STRATEGY FOR CARMARTHENSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL – delivery, reporting and resources 
 
The tables below set out CCC’s responsibilities for trees and woodlands, how these are currently managed, and how CCC can now do more to deliver 
against both the Climate Change and the Nature Emergencies. The service areas that are delivering the Tree and Woodland Strategy must build these 
actions into their Divisional Business Plans and report on them. These actions are set out Section 7. 
Elements of the strategy will be included in CCC’s Environment Act Forward Plans – these plans run for 3 years e.g., Jan 2023 to Dec 2025. The actions in 
this plan are formally reported to Welsh Government at the end of the 3-year period. 
CCC has set up an Officer Delivery Group, facilitated by its Rural Conservation Section, to steer and oversee the delivery of this strategy which meets 2-3 
time a year to review progress and agree priorities and responsibilities. 
The strategy falls within the cabinet member portfolio for Climate Change, Decarbonisation and Sustainability.  
 
 
5.1 Staff resources and budgets are required for: 
 

• Compliance checking of the correct delivery of tree protection schemes and landscaping schemes approved as part of developments 
• Planning, delivery, and long-term management of tree planting on CCC estate resulting from the actions in this strategy, and wider national policy. This 

new demand will increase as CCC’s delivers new GBI schemes, often as part of other projects e.g., economic regeneration schemes, Highway and 
Transportation schemes, landscaping schemes that are apart of approved CCC developments, schemes to mitigate air and noise pollution, and new 
planting to deliver Nature Recovery and ecosystem resilience.  

• Developing and promoting Supplementary Planning Guidance for GBI, landscaping and SUDS and master plans which will identify how GBI will be 
delivered on the larger sites allocated for development in the Revised Local Development plan in an integrated manner. 

• Further air quality monitoring to inform the targeting of tree planting at problem areas 
• Developing and delivering a communications plan for CCC’s Tree and Woodland Strategy 
 

 

Carmarthenshire currently supports c.14.4% woodland cover. If it is to support 19% woodland by 2050, in line with the Woodland Trust’s 
recommendation above, across the county we will need to plant 11022ha by 2050, or 408ha p.a. each year from 2023 to 2050.
CCC owns 6500ha land. We have calculated that 5.34% of the CCC estate is wooded i.e.,347ha. If CCC is to increase the woodland cover on its land 
from 5.34% to 19%, or a total of 1235ha, it will require that CCC plants 888ha of woodland by 2050, or on average 33ha p.a.  

T
udalen 14



 

 

6. THE TABLES 
 
Table1 A -G sets out CCC’s responsibilities with regards to trees and woodlands and how it approaches the management of trees and woodland on its own 
estate and on privately own land. This document should be read in conjunction with the Council Tree Management Strategy 2023 and its Ash Dieback 
Strategy (see Appendix 1 and 2). 
 
The Table 2 A – C sets out why CCC should be planting more trees, and how this could be achieved. 
 
TABLE 1    MANAGING EXISTING TREES AND WOODLAND 

A  Grounds Maintenance, Housing, Education, Social Care – all trees in the public realm managed by Grounds Maintenance for CCC 
e.g., street and car park trees, trees in parks, trees managed within highway limits 
trees managed on all CCC sites by Grounds Maintenance 

What are CCC’s 
responsibilities? 

Under the Occupiers’ Liability Act 1957 and 1984, and the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974, landowners have responsibility for public 
safety. CCC’s Grounds Maintenance manage trees across a variety of CCC managed land. CCC Highways and Transportation are 
responsible for some street and car park trees. Town and Community Councils also manage trees in some of these areas  

Where we are now Carmarthenshire Tree Management Strategy (Sept 2019) sets out how CCC manages trees on its properties see Appendix 1 
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1221301/ccc-tree-management-strategy.pdf  

Routine tree safety surveys using the Tree Assured system are carried out at all CCC properties where there are trees, this includes all 
school sites and Safe Routes to School where there are tree safety issues. 

CCC staff are trained in Visual Tree Inspections 

CCC’s Ash Dieback (ADB) plan sets out how CCC manages trees affected by ADB. See Appendix 2 

What we want to do  Ensure all departments with a responsibility for trees understand:  
• where they can go for guidance  
• that budgets must be in place to fund tree management work (other than Ash Dieback which is funded corporately) 

Ensure all trees and woodlands in the public realm and for which CCC responsible are managed as a sustainable resource, and in 
accordance with CCC’s published Tree Safety Management Strategy, and its approach to managing Ash Dieback 

Ensure trees which must be removed for safety reasons on CCC estate are replaced 
Promote best management practices of tree management, via publishing guidance and providing training.  
Promote the mapping and the use of management plans for all trees for which CCC is responsible 
Raise awareness of the importance of existing trees 

PRIORITIES FOR 
ACTION, we will 

1. Continue to improve the skill base of CCC officers with regular trees safety and tree management training for CCC staff 
2. Continue to complete safety surveys of all street trees for which CCC is responsible, and carry out necessary work 
3. Ensure that any trees which are removed by CCC for safety reasons are replaced 
 

T
udalen 15

https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1221301/ccc-tree-management-strategy.pdf


 

 

 
 
 
 

B  Existing trees and woodlands in CCC’s 
Country Parks and Local Nature Reserves 
managed by Outdoor Recreation 

e.g., Pembrey County Park, Llyn Llech Owain CP, Gorslas; Ynys Dawela, Brynaman; Morfa Berwig 
Local Nature Reserve, Llanelli; Cwmoernant reservoirs, Carmarthen 

What are CCC’s 
responsibilities? 

Under the Occupiers’ Liability Act 1957 and 1984, and the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974, landowners have responsibility for public 
safety. When managing trees in these areas we address: 

• Biodiversity - Environment Act 
• Social Benefits - CCC amenity policies 
• Public safety - Occupier’s Liability Acts, Health and Safety Act, CCC Tree Policy and Ash Dieback strategy 
• Forestry legislation - Forestry Act and UK Forest Standard. 

Where we are now Respond to H and S issues and grant funding opportunities to carry out woodland management. Sites are routinely surveyed using the 
adopted TreeAssured system for tree risk management.  

What we want to do Ensure all trees and woodlands on CCC’s estate are managed as a sustainable resource, and in accordance with CCC’s tree safety 
procedures using the Tree Assured system  

Ensure CCC delivers the management plans it has in place for the trees and woodlands in its country parks and Local Nature Reserves. 
These will address nature recovery, carbon sequestration and they will make use of low impact silvicultural system such as continuous 
cover forestry, and they will safeguard public access 

PRIORITIES FOR 
ACTION – we will 

4. Keep under review the management of woodlands on CCC’s estate, ensuring its woodlands are subject to plans that address their 
sustainable management 

5.  Identify funding for implementation of plans –including potential grant funding and sources of funding to cover costs over and above 
grant aid. Agree the implementation of costed management plans for CCC woodlands with relevant departments 
   

 
  

T
udalen 16



 

 

 
 

C  Trees and woodlands on CCC’s County Farms, on its rural land holdings, and on its sites proposed for disposals 
Check intro section re wealth of benefits 

 
 
 

What are CCC’s 
responsibilities? 

Under the Occupiers’ Liability Act 1957 and 1984, and the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974, landowners have responsibility for public 
safety.  
CCC Tree Safety Management Strategy and Ash Dieback Strategy 
Forestry legislation and policy - UK Forest Standard 
Biodiversity - Environment (Wales) Act 2016 

Where are we now? Coed Cymru Officer advises and oversees work when issues e.g., windblow affect woodlands on CCC farms 

Where do we want to 
be?  

Ensure all trees and woodlands on CCC’s estate are managed as a sustainable resource, in accordance with its tree safety procedures 
Work with the Strategic Land-use Review Group to identify opportunities for improving the management of the existing woodland and 
expanding the woodland resource on the County Farms  
Promote use of low impact silvicultural systems on CCC’s estate such as continuous cover forestry, and aim to avoid clear felling when 
possible 
Design tree and woodland management/planting projects to deliver multiple benefits 
Secure the funding that will be required for woodland management over and above WG grant available 
Promote replacement of dead, diseased, and unsafe trees 
Raise awareness of the importance of existing trees and woodlands on CCC’s County Farms, of the multiple benefits and ecosystem 
services which they provide  

PRIORITIES FOR 
ACTION 

6   Progress the management of the trees and woodland on CCC’s County Farms as set out above 

 
 
  

T
udalen 17



 

 

 

D   CCC Highways - Trees and woodlands on private land adjacent to the highway which can have impacts on public safety  
 

What are CCC’s 
responsibilities? 

Under the Occupiers’ Liability Act 1957 and 1984, and the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974, landowners have responsibility for public 
safety. Under the Highways Act 1980, CCC as the Highway Authority has a duty to ensure highways are maintained to a safe standard.  
This includes trees on private land which have the potential of causing harm to highway users. 

 

Where we are now  Carmarthenshire Tree Management Strategy (updated 2023) sets out how CCC manages trees adjacent to the 
highwayhttps://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1221301/ccc-tree-management-strategy.pdf  

In addition, in response to the spread of Ash Dieback across the county, regular tree surveys are carried out across the road network with 
priority given to the A & B roads and other high use class 3 roads.   

Highway Inspectors are trained in Visual Tree Inspection techniques and how to recognise and understand the risks associated with Ash 
Dieback and other tree safety issues. 

Owners of trees adjacent to the highway that pose a risk to the public are provided with advice and guidance on how to manage this risk, 
and the provisions of the Highways Act 1980 are applied when necessary. See CCC’s Ash Dieback pages 
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/planning/biodiversity/ash-dieback-disease/# 

What we want to do Continue to raise awareness of: 
• landowners’ responsibility to manage their trees and woodlands adjacent to the highway 
• safe working practices  
Provide on-going refresher training for Highway Inspectors and keep them up to date with tree safety and tree management issues.  
Using the CCC web site continue to raise awareness of the wildlife legislation that applies to removing trees and appropriate working 
methods that minimise adverse impacts and provide advice and encourage appropriate replacement tree planting.  

Work with forest management companies and NRW to raise awareness of the impacts of forest management on and how these risks can 
and best be reduced e.g., 

• Liaise with managers of woodland adjacent to county roads, especially those where there is a steep wooded slope above the road, where 
clear felling combined with heavier rainfall events may result in landslides.  

• Encourage woodland managers to practice silvicultural systems that avoid clear felling and manage a natural shrub-rich forest edge to 
develop alongside the road.  

• Manage CCC highways with respect to trees within highway limits and adjacent to roads, in accordance with the Well Manged Highway 
Infrastructure Code of Practice (UK Roads Liaison Group 2017)  

• Work with CCC Communications Team who can support officers in disseminating information on tree management and tree planting 

PRIORITIES FOR 
ACTION - we will 

7. Continue to identify and implement tree safety work, consistent with the industry best practice, and provide regular training for CCC 
officers 
8.     Continue to communicate and raise awareness of tree safety issues with private landowners 
9.     Work with forest managers and NRW to raise awareness of tree safety issues and the impacts of forest management on highways and 
how these risks can be minimised  

 

T
udalen 18

https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1221301/ccc-tree-management-strategy.pdf
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/planning/biodiversity/ash-dieback-disease/


 

 

 
 
 

E  Rural Conservation - Trees subject to Tree Preservation Orders and trees within Conservation Areas 
What are CCC’s 
responsibilities? 

Trees subject to Tree Preservation Orders - CCC has discretionary legal powers to designate Tree Preservation Orders, and place orders 
on trees that meet the necessary amenity criteria. If work to a TPO tree is required, a formal application must be made to the LPA who will 
determine if the works should proceed. 

Trees within Conservation Areas - If work to a tree in Conservation Area is proposed the LPA must be informed. If they oppose the work, it   
must place a TPO on that tree 

Where are we now? Trees subject to Tree Preservation Orders - CCC determines applications to carry out works to trees covered by TPOs. 
It places TPOs on trees when the necessary criteria are stratified and there is a threat to a tree 
Trees within Conservation Areas - CCC determines applications to carry out works to trees in Conservation Areas 

Where do we want to 
be? 

 Delivering an action plan for review of the c. 200 TPOs in Carmarthenshire, identifying the human, IT and financial resources required, and 
the necessary budget 

This has not been carried out for c.10 years. Some protected trees may have died e.g., due to Ash Dieback disease 

PRIORITIES FOR 
ACTION – we will 

10.Develop and commence delivery of an action plan for the review of the Carmarthenshire TPOs 

 

F  Place and Sustainability - Trees and development 
What are CCC’s 
responsibilities? 

Trees and the impact of development is addressed by local and national planning policies. Town and Country Act 1990 S.197 –  
Planning permission can include appropriate provision for the management of trees. 
Felling legislation (enforced by NRW) applies to felling of trees outside of gardens and orchards. 
Impact of development on trees and woodland is fully considered in planning process with input from Arboricultural Officer, Landscape 
Officer and Planning Ecology  

New and upgraded forest accesses and tracks are also the subject of planning applications, Rural Conservation Section staff respond to 
consultations on these, as do Highways Planning, ensuring new entrance designs meet road safety standards, and are acceptable in the 
local landscape etc. 

 

Where are we now? CCC’s Arboricultural Officer is consulted on planning applications that impact on trees.  
Developers are advised that impacts on trees must be managed by avoiding and protecting trees on a site.  
If a development (inc. all underground and over ground services, assess routes and SUDs construction) can avoid direct impacts on trees 
this should be set out on a plan showing the necessary construction exclusion zone and where any necessary protective fencing must be 
installed. This must be erected prior to development to BS 5837. 

If there are impact on the existing trees these must be set out in an Arboricultural Impact Assessment to BS 5837, with mitigation identified. 
If trees are to be removed, replanting as part of an LPA approved landscaping plan is requested and delivery of this plan becomes a 
condition of the permission granted. 

T
udalen 19



 

 

CCC expects that all existing trees of appropriate quality and condition to be retained to the maximum extent on development sites. Any new 
development must demonstrate that the constraints posed by existing trees have been fully addressed in the design of the proposals. 

Specification of tree planting and maintenance as part of mitigation within planning consent is requested and provided pre-determination in 
most cases. This is covered by policies in LDP and PPW11 

Where do we want to 
be? 

All planning applications on sites where there are trees are accompanied by the necessary information regarding any impact on the trees. 
With the necessary resources in place, initiate compliance checking of the correct delivery of tree protection schemes and landscaping   
schemes approved as part of developments. 

 

PRIORITIES FOR 
ACTION- we will 

11. Development Managers will ensure all planning applications for sites where there are trees are accompanied by the relevant information 
and that all trees which are appropriate for retention are protected during development 
12.Develop and resource an approach to compliance checking of all new tree and woodland requested as part of a planning permission. 
Applicants could report on this themselves, evidencing at least completion and possibly maintenance 
13.Identify new mechanisms by which funds can be established to fund planting and long-term care of trees and other landscaping in the 
public realm 
 

G   Rural Conservation - Forestry - WG Woodland Estate and applications for WG Woodland Creation (WGWC) and new/upgraded forest 
accesses 

What are CCC’s 
responsibilities? 

CCC is consulted on NRW’s long term forest resource plans for the WG woodland estate in Carmarthenshire 
CCC is consulted by NRW on larger WG Woodland Creation schemes in the county’s Special Landscape Areas 
New and upgraded forest accesses and tracks are the subject of planning applications (see above)   

Where are we now? CCC is consulted on WGWC applications in the county’s Special Landscape Areas 
It is consulted by NRW on Forest Natural Resource plans for WG Woodland Estate and applications for WG Woodland Creation (GWC) 
grants 

In its responses to the above, CCC encourages the principles of sustainable management of natural resources to be applied to all long-term 
forest resources plans, and the planting of new woodland. With regards to both long-term plans and WGWC it highlights the other benefits 
forests and new woodlands can provide – public access, landscape, water catchment management, biodiversity, and nature recovery.  

  In its responses to NRW on plans for the WG Woodland Estate, it highlights the need for the WG woodland estate to be managed and for 
new woodlands to be established in ways that: 

• avoiding forest practices that rely on single species plantations and clear felling 
• adopt sustainable forest practices that conserve forest soils, minimise clear felling, conserve and promote biodiversity 
• promote nature recovery and ecological resilience, as per CCC’s and NRW’s and WG’s S.6 Environment Act duty 
• make a positive contribution to the landscape 
• encourage management systems that will result in creation of a high value timber resource 
• minimise risks to highway safety 
• reduce flooding by controlling run-off  
• avoid the spread of invasive species,  
• promote public access 

T
udalen 20



 

 

Where do we want to 
be?  

To see an improvement in the management of Carmarthenshire’s woodland resource with less reliance on clear felling and greater use of 
low impact silvicultural systems, which will deliver multiple benefits – e.g., nature recovery, catchment management, and management of 
soil carbon  

Working with NRW and forest management companies to reduce the risks of forest management on highways  

PRIORITIES FOR 
ACTION – we will 

14.Continue engagement with NRW regarding management of WG Woodland Estate and with  
WGWC schemes and the planting of new woodlands in SLAs and ideally elsewhere in the county 
15.Initiate discussions with NRW and private forestry companies regarding the risks which forests pose to highways and how these may be 
reduced 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

T
udalen 21



 

 

 
 
TABLE 2    NEW TREE AND WOODLAND PLANTING 

Why and how CCC can and should plant more trees in Carmarthenshire  
 
 
 

A  CCC Property, Education, Housing, Social Care, Grounds Maintenance, Highways and Transportation, Place and Sustainability - 
Tree and woodland planting on CCC land and in the public realm that will address the Nature Emergency, to mitigate the impacts of Ash 
Dieback and to address Climate Change  

What are CCC’s 
existing 
responsibilities? 

The Welsh Government Net Zero Wales Carbon Budget 2 (2021-25) requires that all public sector organisations should use the Route Map 
and Reporting Guide to develop and publish plans by March 2023 to achieve a collective net zero public sector by 2030. Policy 84 supports 
commitments to map out local authority land holdings by April 2022 to identify types of land and their sequestration potential to develop 
plans to maximise carbon benefits, renewable energy and to identify potential flood management measures; it also supports carbon 
sequestration as a valid core purpose for use of public land and opportunities actively pursued by local authorities on their own land, 
including habitat restoration, tree planting etc. as appropriate. 

 
On 20th February 2019 Carmarthenshire County Council unanimously committed to making Carmarthenshire County Council a net zero 
carbon local authority by 2030. Action NZC-15 in the Council Net Zero Carbon Route plan is to explore the feasibility of tree-planting, and 
other such measures, on Council controlled land to contribute towards carbon offsetting. 

 
WG and CCC have announced a Nature Emergency. Expanding the extent of native broadleaved woodland and the number of individual 
trees we plant will help address this emergency. Sustainable management of CCC’s existing woodland resource and new tree and 
woodland planting is also critical for Nature Recovery 

PPW11 sets out the requirement for biodiversity enhancement, which can include tree planting as a planning requirement 
CCC facilitates the Carmarthenshire Nature Partnership which is preparing the Carmarthenshire Nature Recovery Plan. This document 
highlights the role of woodland in Carmarthenshire in providing for Nature Recovery. See Part 2 page 33 of the following: 

https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/planning/biodiversity/carmarthenshire-nature-partnership/#.YbizqEX7TIU 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
udalen 22

https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/planning/biodiversity/carmarthenshire-nature-partnership/#.YbizqEX7TIU


 

 

Where we are now?  CCC’s Strategic Land Use Review group is reviewing its landholdings and is assessing where there are opportunities to plant trees on CCC 
land, and where there are opportunities for more renewable energy. Planting to sequester carbon is being addressed in conjunction with:  

• delivery of Green Infrastructure and opportunities for providing public access 
• reduction of phosphate levels in water courses, 
• compensation for losses of trees due to Ash Dieback  
• mitigating air and noise pollution 
• improvements in water management, infiltration, and reducing flooding down stream 
• nature recovery and the creation of new wildlife habitats and enhanced ecological connectivity 
• 3 new woodland planting schemes in Ffairfach, Kidwelly and Llandybie are already being progressed with WG grant aid which 

deliver against the above agendas. The total area of these schemes is 4.5ha. These areas will be planted in winter 22/23. 
• Tree Safety Officer works with schools to identify opportunities for new tree planting, in conjunction with tree safety work. 

 

Where do we want to 
be? 

• Secure commitment and funding across CCC for the cost of planting and long-term maintenance requirements of the trees it plants 
• Raise awareness of the multiple and linked benefits of tree and woodland planting, which include carbon sequestration, nature 

recovery, and compensating for the losses associated with Ash Dieback. Co-ordinate grant applications to deliver these projects 
• Set target of increasing woodland cover on CCC land from 5.34% to 19 % by 2050, in line with UK target. This will require CCC to 

plant 33ha of woodland every year between 2023 and 2050  
• Ensure all CCC projects are assessed for opportunities for tree and woodland planting – e.g., regeneration projects, highway 

improvements, new schools, new housing developments. Within these projects review and reduce the areas allocated for new 
amenity grassland replacing these with trees, woodland and shrubs as appropriate.  

• Review the area of amenity grassland CCC manages, and where appropriate establish woodland and trees. Use planting designs 
that in the long term will reduce the maintenance costs of these areas 

• Identify and deliver at least 6 new planting schemes p.a. on land managed by CCC – Housing, Highways, Education, Property and 
Regeneration, planting at least 33ha p.a. to 2030   

• On tenanted CCC farms, aim for a minimum of 10% woodland cover by 2030 consistent with WG Sustainable Farming Scheme, and 
increase this to 19% by 2050, consistent with relevant WG and UK targets 

• Take 1 in 100 car parking spaces out of CCC car parks and planting a tree instead in recognition of the link between car travel and 
carbon footprint 

• Where this does not conflict with the existing value of an area for biodiversity, and where appropriate, increase the tree and 
woodland cover in CCC’s Country Parks and Local Nature Reserves 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
udalen 23



 

 

PRIORITIES FOR 
ACTION – we will 

1. Gain commitment across CCC to deliver an increase in the number of trees and the amount of woodland cover on its estate from 
5.34% to 19 % by 2050 and to plant 33ha of new woodland each year until 2050 to achieve this goal.  
2. Promote and adopt a simple, easy to follow guides for tree planting and maintenance based on advice from the Arboricultural 
Association, Woodland Trust and the Trees and Design Action Group. See also a bilingual tree planting video made in Carmarthenshire for 
schools: 

• https://www.trees.org.uk/Help-Advice/Guide-to-Young-Tree-Establishment 
• https://www.trees.org.uk/Help-Advice/Arboricultural-Resources 
• https://www.woodlandtrust.org.uk/plant-trees/advice/ 
• https://www.tdag.org.uk/trees-in-hard-landscapes.html 

Tree Planting in School Grounds/ Plannu Coed mewn Tiroedd Ysgol – a YouTube video made in Carmarthenshire 
• https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Aqe4JsWx060 

3. Develop and demonstrate an integrated approach to delivery of tree and new woodland planting across CCC projects that will deliver 
against several agendas: Green and Blue Infrastructure, SUDS, carbon sequestration, nature recovery, ash dieback, landscape, and 
amenity, reduction in phosphates, and improving air quality   
4. Ensure all new tree planting linked to CCC projects is planted and maintained in accordance with the agreed design scheme 

 
  

T
udalen 24

https://www.trees.org.uk/Help-Advice/Guide-to-Young-Tree-Establishment
https://www.trees.org.uk/Help-Advice/Arboricultural-Resources
https://www.woodlandtrust.org.uk/plant-trees/advice/
https://www.tdag.org.uk/trees-in-hard-landscapes.html
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=AQe4JsWx060
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Aqe4JsWx060


 

 

 

B  Public Protection and CCC projects - Planting trees and woodlands to improve air quality in our more urban areas 

What are CCC’s 
existing 
responsibilities? 

Air quality in many of Britain’s urban areas falls below recommended standards. The Environmental Protection service is responsible for the 
Review and Assessment of Air Quality – a statutory function under the provisions of the Environment Act 1995. Through this regime, the 
main pollutant of concern for Carmarthenshire has been identified as Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2) from road vehicles. We have 98 locations 
throughout the County where NO2 is measured (via diffusion tubes – standard practice outlined in the relevant guidance document), and 
we have 3 Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) where levels have exceeded annual statutory limits in “hotspot” locations. There is an 
AQMA in Llandeilo, Llanelli and Carmarthen. The Aim of the AQMAs is to improve Air Quality to the extent that no further breaches of the 
standards occur. 

Tree planting is one way of improving air quality, and it can also help reduce noise pollution, support climate action, improve health and 
wellbeing, and enhance biodiversity. 

Where are we now? Tree planting at Johnstown school following analysis of air quality (Public Health, Johnstown School, Woodland Trust)  
Ad hoc implementation of tree planting as funding opportunities arises e.g., tree planting at St David’s Parc through WG ENRaW Green 
Infrastructure grant 

Where do we want to 
be?  

Identify areas of lowest air quality in Carmarthenshire and opportunities for tree planting e.g., school grounds which would improve air 
quality in these areas. Deliver tree planting initiatives in collaboration with Public Health and schools (EcoSchools and Healthy Schools 
initiatives are relevant) 

Work in partnership with Town and Community Councils to raise awareness of the opportunities for planting in open areas and manage 
existing trees where air and noise pollution are issues 

Ensure all CCC projects that have the capacity to deliver some tree or woodland planting that could help in addressing air quality do so. 
Review amenity grassland as a land use in such projects, and consider areas where grass could be replaced with tree, shrub, or woodland 
planting 

Identify active travel routes that would avoid areas with lowest air quality, and integrate these with GBI initiatives  
Put the necessary budget and staff resources in place to deliver the above 

PRIORITIES FOR 
ACTION – we will 

5. With Public Health identify areas in the county where air/ noise pollution is of greatest concern and where there are also nearby 
opportunities for tree planting, e.g., schools 
6. Develop costed plans for viable schemes which include the staff resources required for delivery and long-term maintenance of these 
areas 
7. Seek opportunities to put in place the staff resources and budgets required and work in partnership to deliver tree and woodland 
planting, and GBI initiatives in urban areas across Carmarthenshire, aimed at mitigating air pollution and improving air quality 
 

 
 
 
  

T
udalen 25



 

 

 

C  Place and Sustainability - Tree and woodland planting and new development and the provision of Green Infrastructure, landscape, 
SUDS, Nature Recovery/ Ecological enhancement  

What are CCC’s 
existing 
responsibilities? 

PPW 11 and local planning policy address tree issues, ecology, and landscaping as part of planning process 
CCC’s Moving Forward Document requires a strategy as follows: Action 23: Promote a tree strategy to improve the environment and 
mitigate the effects of air and noise pollution in our more populated areas. 

PPW11 promotes the development of Green and Blue Infrastructure (GBI).  PPW11 emphasises that GBI plays a fundamental role in 
shaping places and our sense of well-being, and therefore the planning system should protect and enhance GBI assets and 
ecological networks.  In accordance with PPW11, a GBI Assessment was carried out within the county, and this is being used as a 
tool to inform the preparation of the Revised LDP (Land Use Consultants Feb 2022).  Further work detailing GBI is contained with the 
Placemaking & Design SPG which will be updated as part of the Revised LDP process. Tree and woodland planting is one delivery 
mechanism for GBI. 

Where are we now? Planning permissions are often conditional upon protection of exiting trees and where trees are removed upon significant re-planting. 
Landscaping, which regularly involved tree planting is a requirement of many developments. 

Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SUDS) are a requirement of development, and these areas can include trees, see 
• https://www.rspb.org.uk/globalassets/downloads/documents/positions/planning/sustainable-drainage-systems.pdf 
• https://www.trees.org.uk/Trees.org.uk/files/d9/d94feb31-759d-40d9-8abd-48715df32f7e.pdf 

Planning permissions can also require biodiversity enhancements which can include tree and woodland planting 
CCC is (Nov 2021) developing a GBI strategy for 8 of its towns, tree planting projects will form a part of this strategy  

Where do we want to 
be?  

Approving developments that use tree and woodland planting as part of an integrated approach to the provision of GBI, SUDS, landscaping, 
nature recovery, public amenity, and improving air quality 

Evidencing that all CCC projects (E.g., Housing, Education, Regeneration etc) incorporate appropriate tree and woodland planting which will 
deliver multiple benefits (GI, landscape, ecology) and have sought advice landscape and ecology advice from CCC’s Rural Conservation 
Section when necessary   

Demonstrating an integrated, long-term approach to the delivery of GBI across other relevant agendas e.g., economic development, CCC’s 
Ten Towns Initiative 

Developing and adopting SPG and practices that ensure long term maintenance of trees and woodland in the public realm (tree, shrub, and 
woodland planting, roadside, within housing developments etc) is planted and maintained in accordance with the approved landscape 
design scheme 

PRIORITIES FOR 
ACTION we will 

8. Develop, publish, and adopt Supplementary Planning Guidance which sets out an integrated approach for landscaping, SUDS and 
the provision of GBI, managing tree issues and providing for nature recovery (ecological enhancement) on development sites. This guidance 
must highlight the multiple benefits that tree and woodland planting can deliver.   
9. Secure resources implement compliance monitoring to ensure all tree planting and landscaping associated with development across 
Carmarthenshire is delivered and maintained –  
10.Prepare Master Plans for larger allocated sites in the LDP which will set out how GBI, SUDS, landscaping and ecological enhancement 
will be delivered as an integral part of new development 

  

T
udalen 26

https://www.rspb.org.uk/globalassets/downloads/documents/positions/planning/sustainable-drainage-systems.pdf
https://www.trees.org.uk/Trees.org.uk/files/d9/d94feb31-759d-40d9-8abd-48715df32f7e.pdf


 

 

7. DRAFT ACTION PLAN 
7.1 ACTIONS FOR THE MANAGEMENT OF CCC’S EXISTING TREES AND WOODLANDS 

 
 

 
Dept Plan Ref  

#  
Actions  Measure By Who?  

Responsible Officer    

TWS/1 ACTIONS FOR THE MANAGEMENT OF 
EXISTING TREES AND WOODLANDS: MEASURES and MILESTONES    

TWS/1A1 Continue to improve the skill base of CCC 
officers with regular trees safety and tree 
management training for CCC staff 
Tree Safety Officer will provide training for 
new staff and regular updates for all relevant 
staff on tree safety and tree inspection. 
Officers to attend refresher courses every 2 
years 
 

Each year report on: 
• No. of tree safety and tree 

inspection courses run.  
• Percentage of officers identified 

by managers as requiring 
training who have attended 
courses within 2 years of 
monitoring date, i.e., whose 
tree safety training up to date 

Tree Safety Officer   

TWS/1A2 Continue to complete safety surveys of all 
street trees for which CCC is responsible, 
and carry out necessary work 

Each year report on percentage of site 
for which surveys of street trees are up 
to date and all identified works have 
been completed 

Grounds and Cleaning Manager 
CCC Highways   

TWS/1A3 Ensure that any trees which are removed by 
CCC for safety reasons are replaced.  

Each year report on: 
No. of trees felled for safety reasons and 
no. for which replacement is organised 

Tree Safety Officer   

TWS/1B4 

Keep under review the management of 
woodlands on CCC’s estate, ensuring its 
woodlands are subject to plans that address 
their sustainable management 

By March 2024: Identify no. of sites 
requiring a woodland management plan 
and initiate a rolling programme of 
review on the woodland management 
plans with the CCC Woodland Officer 
Prioritise woodlands to be managed. 
Each year report on no. of woodland 
management plans reviewed 
 

Senior Asset Management Surveyor (Property)    

TWS/1B5 Identify funding for implementation of plans –
including potential grant funding and sources 
of funding to cover costs over and above 
grant aid. Agree the implementation of 
costed management plans for CCC 
woodlands with relevant departments 

Each year report on the no. woodlands, 
identified as priorities, for management, 
which costed management plans have 
been developed 

CCC Woodland Officer   

T
udalen 27



 

 

TWS/1C6 Progress the management of the trees and 
woodland on CCC’s County Farms as set out 
in Table C 

Each year report on no. CCC woodlands 
where management is progressing CCC Woodland Officer   

TWS1/D7 
CCC Highways  Continue to identify and implement tree 

safety work, consistent with the industry best 
practice, and provide regular training for CCC 
officers 
     

Each year report on no. officers 
completing training, see TWS/1A1 is 
provided above 
Each year report on annual programme 
of tree safety surveys on A, B and 
heavily used C roads  
Each year report on number of tree work 
packages progressed through CCC’s 
DPS for tree safety work 

Tree Safety Officer   

TWS/1D8 
CCC Highways 

Continue to communicate and raise 
awareness of tree safety issues with private 
landowners 

Each year report on information 
provided on CCC web site and to 
partner organisations 

Tree Safety Officer   

TWS/1D9 
also covers  

G15 
Work with forest managers and NRW to raise 
awareness of tree safety issues and the 
impacts of forest management on highways 
and how these risks can be minimised 

Set up meeting in 2023/24 FY to discuss 
with all partners concerned Rural Conservation Manager   

TWS/1E10 

Develop and commence delivery of a review 
of the Carmarthenshire TPOs 

Feb 23: Complete training in preparation 
for the review 
June 23: Complete pilot assessment of 
5 TPOs 
June 23: Set up ARCUS system to 
generate TPO documents 
Each year report on number of TPO 
reviewed 

Arboricultural Officer   

TWS/1F11 
Development Managers will ensure all 
planning applications for sites where there 
are trees are accompanied by the relevant 
arboricultural information and that protection 
of all trees which are appropriate for retention 
to BS standards is set out in conditions or in 
approved documents 
 

Every 3 months/ 6 months, report on 
percentage of planning applications 
received for sites with trees and where 
these are correctly identified and 
accompanied by the required 
arboricultural information. Aim for 
increase in this figure 
 
 
 
 
 

Senior Development Managers   

T
udalen 28



 

 

TWS/1F12 

Develop and resource an approach to 
compliance checking of all new tree and 
woodland requested as part of a planning 
permission. Applicants could report on this 
themselves. 

Assess the extent of the problem –  
By March 24 - gather evidence 
regarding approved developments 
where conditions relating to trees have 
not been correctly discharged. 
identify and assess options for resolving 
this issue. 
 In 24/25 pilot different approaches to 
resolving this issue 

Rural Conservation Manager 
Arboricultural officer 
Landscape Officer 

Senior Development Managers 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

TWS/1F13 
Identify new mechanisms by which funds can 
be established to fund planting and long-term 
care of trees and other landscaping in the 
public realm 

March 24: Report on discussions which 
Place and Sustainability will initiate 
regarding the use of S106 and other 
mechanisms for this purpose 

Rural Conservation Manager 
Arboricultural officer 
Landscape Officer 

Senior Development Managers 
Forward Planning Manager 

  

TWS/1G14 
Continue engagement with NRW regarding 
management of WG Woodland Estate and 
with WGWC schemes for new woodlands in 
SLAs and ideally elsewhere in the county 

Report each year on no. of schemes 
received each year for consultation and 
responded to within target date 

Rural Conservation Manager   

 

     

      
 
 
 
 
  

T
udalen 29



 

 

 
 

Dept Plan 
Ref  
#  

Actions  Measure By Who?  
Responsible Officer    

TWS/2 ACTIONS FOR NEW TREE AND 
WOODLAND PLANTING in 
CARMARTHENSHIRE 
  

MEASURES and MILESTONES    

TWS/2A1 Gain commitment across CCC to deliver an 
increase in the number of trees and the 
amount of woodland cover on its estate from 
5.34% to 19 % by 2050 and to plant 33ha of 
new woodland each year until 2050 to 
achieve this goal.  

Adoption of planting target by Cabinet 
in 2023 tbc   

TWS/2A2 Adopt and promote simple, easy to follow 
guides for tree planting and maintenance  in 
the public realm based on advice from the 
Arboricultural Association, Woodland Trust 
and the Trees and Design Action Group. See 
also a bilingual tree planting video made in 
Carmarthenshire for schools: 

In FY 23/24 run up to 3 short workshop 
sessions for staff involved in requiring tree 
planting as part of project brief 

Landscape Officer   

TWS/2A3 Develop and demonstrate an integrated 
approach to delivery of tree and woodland 
planting across CCC projects which will 
deliver against several agendas: Green and 
Blue Infrastructure, SUDS, carbon 
sequestration, nature recovery, ash dieback, 
landscape, and amenity, reduction in 
phosphates, and improving air quality   

Every 6 months project managers (Property 
Education, Housing, Regen, Property 
Design, Active Travel, Professional Design 
Services, Highways etc) to report back to 
Rural Conservation Manager on progress in 
delivering GBI as part of CCCs projects 

Rural Conservation Manager   

TWS/2A4 
Put the necessary resources and 
mechanisms in place to enable CCC to 
demonstrate that all new tree planting, linked 
to CCC projects, is planted, and maintained 
in accordance with the agreed design 
scheme 

Each year identify all relevant CCC project 
which should include tree planting and after 
care in project brief, and report on  
percentage of relevant CCC projects which 
include tree planting and after care in 
project briefs, and  
percentage of relevant projects with tree 
planting and maintenance report completed 
by project managers 

tbc   

T
udalen 30



 

 

TWS/2B5 With Public Health identify areas in the 
county where air/ noise pollution is of 
greatest concern and where there are also 
nearby opportunities for tree planting, e.g., 
schools 
 

Report on 6 monthly meetings between 
Public Health and Rural Conservation 
regarding this action 

Rural Conservation Manager   

TWS/2B6 Develop costed plans for viable schemes, 
which include the staff resources required, 
for delivery and long-term maintenance of 
tree and woodland planting schemes 
designed to improve air quality, and mitigate 
noise pollution 

Report each year on no. costed schemes 
developed which will deliver air quality 
improvements in our more urban areas 

Rural Conservation Manager   

TWS/2B7 

Seek opportunities to put in place the staff 
resources and budgets required and work 
in partnership to deliver tree and woodland 
planting, and GBI initiatives in urban areas 
across Carmarthenshire, aimed at 
mitigating air pollution and improving air 
quality 

March 2024: provide evidence of progress 
in securing staff resources and budgets for 
this work. 
March 24: Report on meetings set up to: 

• discuss if the maintenance 
arrangements, and transfer of land 
as part of the SUDS system could 
be extended to the management of 
other Green Infrastructure (GI) on 
development sites 

• discuss opportunities for SUDS to 
be designed to deliver GI 

• explore the viability of S106 
contributions to facilitate tree and 
woodland planting, both on and off 
site (which may be used to satisfy 
both GBI and net benefits for 
biodiversity requirements). 

Rural Conservation Manager   

TWS/2C8 
 

Programme, develop, publish, and adopt 
Supplementary Planning Guidance which 
sets out an integrated approach for 
landscaping, SUDS and the provision of 
GBI, managing tree issues and providing 
for nature recovery (ecological 
enhancement) on development sites. This 
guidance must highlight the multiple 
benefits that tree and woodland planting 
can deliver. Promote tree planting in 

SPG for Trees and Woodland Planting as 
part of new development is programmed for 
Summer 2025 

Forward Planning Manager   T
udalen 31



 

 

accordance with the principles of place 
making and quality design.   

 

TWS/2C9 Secure resources required to implement 
compliance monitoring to ensure all tree 
planting and landscaping associated with 
development across Carmarthenshire is 
delivered and maintained 

March 2024: Report on evidence of 
progress in securing staff resources and 
budgets for this work Rural Conservation Manager/ tbc   

TWS/2C10 Prepare Master Plans for larger allocated 
sites in the LDP which will set out how GBI, 
SUDS, landscaping and ecological 
enhancement will be delivered as an 
integral part of new development 

Report annually on progress in developing 
master plans for larger sites allocated for 
development in the new LDP  

Forward Planning Manager   

      
 
 
 
  

T
udalen 32



 

 

 
References: 
Tree Council: A Tree and Woodland Strategy Tool Kit for Local Authorities. Jan 2023.  
https://treecouncil.org.uk/what-we-do/science-and-research/tree-strategies/ 
 
Tree Council Guidance on Ash Dieback:  

https://treecouncil.org.uk/science-and-research/ash-dieback/local-authority-ash-dieback-action-plan-toolkit/ 

https://treecouncil.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/06/Tree-Council-Ash-dieback-tree-owners-guide-FINAL.pdf 

 
Town Tree Cover in Carmarthenshire (NRW)  
https://cdn.cyfoethnaturiol.cymru/media/682935/carmarthenshire-tcwtc3-technical-annex.pdf 
 
Carmarthenshire County Council’s Tree Management Strategy Sept 2019 (currently being updated)   

https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/planning/conservation-countryside/trees/#.XqxA40F7nIU 

Arboricultural Association: Industry Coed of Practice for Tree Work at Height 2020  

https://www.trees.org.uk/Trees.org.uk/media/Trees-org.uk/Documents/ICoP/ICoP-Tree-Work-at-Height-May20-web.pdf 

Arboricultural Association: Tree Work Definitions and Terminology 

https://www.trees.org.uk/Help-Advice/Public/A-brief-guide-to-tree-work-terminology-and-definit 

 
   

T
udalen 33

https://treecouncil.org.uk/what-we-do/science-and-research/tree-strategies/
https://treecouncil.org.uk/science-and-research/ash-dieback/local-authority-ash-dieback-action-plan-toolkit/
https://treecouncil.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/06/Tree-Council-Ash-dieback-tree-owners-guide-FINAL.pdf
https://cdn.cyfoethnaturiol.cymru/media/682935/carmarthenshire-tcwtc3-technical-annex.pdf
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/planning/conservation-countryside/trees/#.XqxA40F7nIU
https://www.trees.org.uk/Trees.org.uk/media/Trees-org.uk/Documents/ICoP/ICoP-Tree-Work-at-Height-May20-web.pdf
https://www.trees.org.uk/Help-Advice/Public/A-brief-guide-to-tree-work-terminology-and-definit


 

 

APPENDIX 1  
Carmarthenshire County Council’s Ash Dieback (ADB) Strategy updated October 2022 

To manage the impacts of Ash Dieback the Council is adopting the following approach: 

Ash die-back disease (ADB) is expected to affect at least up to 80-90% of ash trees in the county. This impacts on the Council’s legal responsibilities, 
obligations and duty of care. To address this the Council will adopt the following strategy:  

1. Develop a co-ordinated, risk-based strategy that will address the necessary management of ADB across the county in a consistent manner 
2. Manage the corporate risk that the disease places on the Council 
3. Raise awareness among the Council officers, Elected Members and private landowners of the duty of care and Health and Safety issues relating to 

the management of ADB  
4. Manage the affected trees for which the Council is directly responsible in accordance with the Industry Code of Practice for Arboriculture. Ensure 

that diseased trees on land adjacent to areas for which it is responsible are managed appropriately by landowners 
5. Ensure that the Council’s management of ADB complies with UK and EU Wildlife legislation and delivers its Environment (Wales) Act S.6 Biodiversity 

Duty 
6. Promote and deliver new tree and woodland planting to compensate for the expected loss of ash trees 
7. Develop effective partnerships to deliver the above 
8. Ensure that all works carried out in response to ADB are procured in accordance with Council procedures 

BACKGROUND 

What is ADB disease? 

ADB is a fungal disease that is affecting ash trees across the UK and Europe. It is considered to have arrived in the UK around 20 years ago from fungal spores carried by 
wind from the continent and from infected tree planting stock imported from mainland Europe. The fungus (known as Chlalara or Hymenoscyphus fraxineus) is likely to 
have originated in Asia where it co-exists with native ash species. However, it has caused widespread damage across mainland Europe where up to 90% of ash trees have 
been killed by the disease. 

 

 

 

T
udalen 34



 

 

How frequent is it across Carmarthenshire, and elsewhere in Wales? 

ADB is widespread across much of Wales.  The percentage of ash trees affected by the disease in Carmarthenshire appears to be increasing each year, and it is likely that 
the majority of ash trees in the county will be affected by the disease, with many of these dying, or seriously declining over the next few years. Some trees may show 
some resistance to the disease, but it is too early to be able to quantify this. It is expected that 80-90% of our ash trees will be affected. Ash is probably the second most 
common tree in the county, and the loss of these trees will have a significant impact in the landscape.  

WHAT IS THE COUNCIL’S STRATEGY FOR MANAGING ADB? 

Consistent with several other local authorities across England and Wales, the Council is adopting the approach to managing ADB that is set out by the Tree Council in its 
Ash Dieback Plan. The strategy is risk based and focuses only on those trees that when dead or dying pose an unacceptable risk to the public, or to property. The Council 
also works consistently with advice from the Arboricultural Association and is a corporate member of the latter. 

Council officers from across the organisation implement the policy and working practices necessary to deliver the proposed strategy, this includes: 

 Highways and Public Rights of Way 

Housing 

Property 

Education 

Grounds Maintenance 

Leisure 

Place and Sustainability  

Regeneration 

Communications 

Health and Safety 

Procurement  

 

 

T
udalen 35



 

 

The Council considers its responsibilities regarding ADB as: 

Responsibility Action 

A co-ordinated risk-based response: 

Develop a co-ordinated risk-based 
response to the management of ADB 
that can be delivered consistently 
across the Council, reflecting its 
responsibilities 

 

LEAD OFFICER – Rural Conservation 
Officer and Tree Safety Officer 

 

• Officers involved in this issue have met regularly since June 2019 to progress the delivery of this 
strategy. They meet to set priorities and agree actions. This work links in with departmental and 
corporate management teams. It is facilitated by the Rural Conservation Section in the Planning 
Service. Funding is in place for an Ash Dieback project officer post initially for 2 years 

Managing trees on land for which the 
Council is responsible: 

Managing appropriately the ash trees 
on land for which the Council is directly 
responsible – e.g., schools, parks, car 
parks, public open space for which it is 
responsible, housing areas, some land 
adjacent to the highway along more 
recently built roads, trees on farms 
owned by the Council  

 

• To comply with its duty of care responsibilities the Council regularly surveys all its properties for tree 
safety using the TreeAssured system, and this includes surveys of ash trees. In 2019 it trained 37 
officers to recognise and understand and the risks associated with ADB.  
 

• All management of diseased ash trees by the Council will be carried out in accordance with the 
Council’s published Tree Management Strategy and the Tree Safety Operational Plan set out within this 
strategy. See also Appendix 2 in the Strategy: TreeAssured Procedure -TreeWorks (West Wales) Ltd 
2014 - See link below 
 

• Affected trees on the Council managed properties and affected trees within highway limits will be 
managed in accordance with the above strategy and in accordance with the ICoP for Arboriculture and 
to BS 3998, the BS standard for tree work 

 

• Working practices will require periodic review to ensure Council procedures and best practice are being 
followed and that efficiencies are adopted where possible. 

T
udalen 36



 

 

LEAD OFFICERS – Tree Safety Officer 
and Head of Property and highway 
Services 

 

Trees on land adjacent to land for 
which the Council is responsible: 

Ensuring the appropriate management 
of diseased trees on land adjacent to 
areas for which it is responsible, the 
public highways – roads, cycle ways safe 
routes to school (SRTS), and public 
rights of way 

LEAD OFFICERS –Tree Safety Office and 
Highway Services Manager 

 

 
• The Highway Authority is inspecting the road network and assessing the risks posed by trees affected 

by Ash Dieback. It is identifying affected trees within highway limits and affected trees within falling 
distance of the road that are on privately owned land. Carmarthenshire has the second largest highway 
network in Wales with some 3,500 km of highway to maintain. With such a large network the authority 
will inspect the roads via a risk-based approach which takes account of the strategic importance of the 
route and traffic volumes. It will develop and use efficient methods of informing private landowners of 
their duty of care responsibilities regarding trees affected by Ash Dieback 
 

• Surveys specifically for the purpose of identifying diseased ash trees are being carried out on the A and 
B roads and will be repeated as the disease progresses 
 

• the Council is also surveying its Safe Routes to School 
 

•  The South Wales Trunk Roads Agency carried out the same surveys along the county’s trunk roads.  
Raising awareness  

Raising awareness among the Council’s 
officers, Elected Members and land 
managers of their responsibilities, 
under the Health and Safety and Work 
Act (1974) and the Owner Occupier 
Liability Act (1957 and 1984) for public 
safety e.g.  management of ash trees 
adjacent to   roads 

 

 

• The Council’s Communication team together with the Ash Dieback project are delivering a 
Communication Plan for ADB which will includes a web page for ADB, a set of FAQs and a leaflet for 
landowners 

• The ADB group is arranging training for officers and Elected Members on ADB and the Council’s 
responsibilities 

• Officers are developing effective methods of working with landowners in relation to roadside trees in 
private ownership, as well as using the more formal approach set out in the Highways Act  

 

 

T
udalen 37



 

 

Raising awareness and understanding of 
the disease among the public 

 

LEAD OFFICER for Communications Plan 

Press and Communications Officer and 
Tree Safety Officer 

 

Health and Safety: 

Manage the affected trees for which 
the Council is directly responsible in 
accordance with the Industry Code of 
Practice for Arboriculture. Ensure that 
diseased trees on land adjacent to areas 
for which it is responsible are managed 
appropriately 

 

LEAD OFFICER: Lead Business Partner 

Health and Safety 

 

 

• The Council will only procure arboricultural contractors to carry out Ash Dieback work that can 
demonstrate that they are working in accordance with the Industry Code of Practice for Arboriculture 
and BS3998:2010 
 

• All the Council’s operatives will work and will be managed in accordance with the Industry Code of 
Practice for Arboriculture and BS 39998:2010. All the Council’s operatives that will be working on trees 
affected by ADB will be trained to the necessary standards and will hold NPTC certificates appropriate 
for this work. They will also receive training specific to managing trees affected by ADB  

 

• Keep under review all risk assessments that relate to ADB and associated work 
 

• Ensure that all traffic (and pedestrian) management systems reflect the necessary safe working circles 
for arboricultural work being carried out 

Ash Dieback and wildlife 

LEAD OFFICER – Rural Conservation 
Manager 

• The Council’s primary concern regarding the management of trees affected by ADB will be the risks to 
the public and property. Consistent with its S.6 Environment Act duty it will adopt working methods 
that are compliant with EU and UK wildlife legislation, and which will minimise any adverse impact on 
habitats and the species they support. It will provide mitigation as appropriate 

T
udalen 38



 

 

New tree planting: 

Raising awareness of the need for 
appropriate new tree planting to 
compensate for the loss of ash trees 
from Carmarthenshire’s landscapes and 
habitats, consistent with the Council’s 
S.6 Environment Act (Wales) Duty  

 

LEAD OFFICERS 

Rural Conservation Manager, Tree 
Safety Officer and Coed Cymru Officer 

(  

 

• The web page will include advice regarding replanting and the Council’s Coed Cymru officer and Ash 
Dieback officer are able to advise landowners 
 

• The Rural Conservation Section will seek opportunities to secure grant aid for new planting projects 
that will compensate for the loss of ash trees in Carmarthenshire, and will encourage others to do like 
wise 
 

• The Council will identify opportunities in its projects to deliver tree planting schemes that will help to 
compensate for the loss of ash trees in the county as well as deliver other multiple benefits 

Working with partners: 

Working effectively with partners across 
Carmarthenshire and at a regional and 
national level to deliver the above 

 

LEAD OFFICER Rural Conservation 
Manager and Tree Safety Officer  

• The Council is working with WLGA, NFU, FUW, CLA and NRW on ADB, and will welcome opportunities 
to work with other interested parties, as appropriate 

Corporate Risk Management 

LEAD OFFICER: Head of Property 

 

The potential impacts of dead and dying trees due to Ash Dieback are accepted as posing a significant 
corporate risk. In developing its ADB strategy, the Council is setting out how it will manage these risks. 

 

T
udalen 39



 

 

Health and Safety: The Council’s approach to managing Health and Safety as set out above addresses the 
potential risks of death or fatal injury resulting from Ash Dieback related accidents, both to professionals 
working on trees and to the public, e.g., road users. 

 

Health and Safety issues on Council managed estate e.g., country parks, schools, and associated infrastructure 
e.g.  safe routes to school will be managed as set out above with reference to both managing land for which the 
Council is directly responsible and managing land adjacent to these areas.  

 

Risk to the Environment: Under the Environment (Wales) Act 2016 the Council has a duty to maintain and 
enhance biodiversity and promote ecosystem resilience. ADB poses a threat to the county’s biodiversity. The 
promotion of woodland management, and tree planting as part of the Council’s approach to managing ADB will 
address this matter. Of particular importance is the delivery of the Council’s own plans for new woodland 
planting which have the potential to address both the loss of habitat and public amenity that will be a direct 
impact of ADB. 

 

Risk to the Council’s reputation: The way in which the Council manages Ash Dieback will impact on its 
reputation. For example, in managing ADB officers will be aware of: 

• the impact of road closures and closure of public open spaces on the Council’s reputation 
• the need to manage public concern regarding ADB 
• the need to manage its relationships with landowners. 

 

The delivery of the Council’s ADB communication plan addresses these issues. 

 

 

 

T
udalen 40



 

 

Financial risk and risk to the economy: ADB will a have an economic impact on the economy of 
Carmarthenshire, principally this will be the direct cost of removing trees that pose a threat to public safety, 
and this cost will fall largely on private landowners - most ash trees in the county are in private ownership. 
There will also be a direct cost associated with repairing any damage to property or infrastructure resulting 
from falling trees. 

 

Together these costs place a significant financial burden on public bodies such as the Council, not only in 
managing trees for which it is directly responsible but ensuring the trees on land adjacent to its responsibilities 
are managed appropriately.  Similarly, ADB poses a threat to other types of infrastructure e.g., rail network and 
overhead lines managed by other agencies.  

 

There is also the cost of new planting to compensate for the loss trees and woodlands to ADB. 

ADB risks have been highlighted through the Property & Liability Risks Working Group and Risk Management 
Steering Group. A financial bid for support to scope and undertake ADB works was initially presented to the 
Risk Management Fund, but has instead been funded, initially from corporate budgets.  

A risk-based approach has been taken to identify and remove trees with well developed symptoms of ADB 
along priority highway routes and in school grounds based on frequency of use and risk to persons from 
affected trees, or parts of trees, falling. The removal of affected ash from less frequently used areas will follow 
subject to the necessary funding being in place.  

 

A risk remains that sufficient funding will be required to undertake essential works to affected trees to prevent 
damage, and further funding requirements will be kept under review and further funding bids made, as 
appropriate.  

 

T
udalen 41



 

 

ADB will remain a standing update on the Risk Management Groups to ensure this is effectively monitored, as 
well as in appropriate Divisional Business Plans for those services with Ash trees in their portfolios. 

 

To manage these risks and all other risks associated with tree safety the Council must retain the necessary 
capacity and expertise within its staffing structure. 

 

 

APPENDIX 2 

CCC Tree Management Strategy Sept 2019 (currently being re drafted) 
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/planning/conservation-countryside/trees/#.XqxA40F7nIU 

 

T
udalen 42

https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/planning/conservation-countryside/trees/#.XqxA40F7nIU


 

 
 Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU  

LLE, CYNALIADWYEDD A NEWID HINSAWDD  
 

24 CHWEFROR 2023 
 

LEFELAU FFOSFFADAU MEWN ARDALOEDD CADWRAETH 
ARBENNIG AFONOL GWARCHODEDIG - DIWEDDARIAD 

 
Y Pwrpas:  
Diweddaru'r pwyllgor ar y cynnydd a'r gwaith a wnaed wrth ymateb i effeithiau 
llygredd Ffosffad mewn Ardaloedd Cadwraeth Arbennig (ACA) Gwarchodedig.  
 

GOFYNNIR I'R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU:- 
 
Adolygu ac asesu'r wybodaeth sydd wedi ei chynnwys yn yr Adroddiad a 
darparu unrhyw sylwadau yn ôl yr angen. 
 
Y Rheswm 
 
Sicrhau bod y mater yn cael ei ystyried fel rhan o Flaengynllun Gwaith y 
Pwyllgor ar gyfer craffu.  
 
YR AELOD CABINET SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-    
Y Cynghorydd Ann Davies, Yr Aelod Cabinet dros Faterion Gwledig a Pholisi Cynllunio 
 
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth 
Yr Amgylchedd 
 
Enw Pennaeth y 
Gwasanaeth: 
Rhodri Griffiths 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad: 
Ian Llewelyn  

Swyddi: 

 

Pennaeth Lle a 
Chynaliadwyedd 
 

Rheolwr Blaen-gynllunio 

 

Rhifau Ffôn: 01267 
246270 
 
 
Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 
RDGriffiths@sirgar.gov.uk 
 
 
01267 228816 
IRLlewelyn@sirgar.gov.uk 
 

 

Tudalen 43

Eitem Rhif  5

mailto:RDGriffiths@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:IRLlewelyn@sirgar.gov.uk


 

 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

 PLACE, SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE CHANGE  
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

 

24 FEBRUARY 2023 
 
 

PHOSPHATE LEVELS IN PROTECTED RIVERINE SPECIAL 
AREAS OF CONSERVATION - UPDATE 

1. SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT. 
 
The report provides an overview of the issues associated with phosphates in the protected 
Riverine SAC’s and outlines the ongoing work being undertaken by the authority in 
addressing the issue.  In this respect Carmarthenshire is at the vanguard across Wales in 
seeking to address the challenges.  It is also working closely with the regulators and Welsh 
Government and assisting them in their efforts to respond to the content of the Natural 
Resource Wales (NRW) guidance on planning in phosphate affected area. 
 
On the 21st January 2021, Natural Resources Wales (NRW) published new evidence about 
the environmental impacts of phosphate in watercourses, further to their assessment of the 9 
riverine Special Areas of Conservation (SAC) in Wales. This assessment (based on tighter 
targets for the water quality of watercourses) established that phosphorus breaches are 
widespread within Welsh SAC rivers with over 60% of waterbodies failing against the 
challenging targets. 
 
As a result, NRW issued ‘interim planning advice’ to avoid further deterioration in 
environmental capacity.  This advice relates to all Riverine SACs whose catchments extend 
into Carmarthenshire including, the Afon Teifi, Afon Tywi, River Wye and Afon Cleddau.  
 
As a Local Planning Authority, the Council is required to have regard to the advice given by 
NRW when making planning decisions for both individual developments and Local 
Development Plans (LDP). Consequently, any proposed development within the river 
catchment that might result in an increase in phosphate levels will need to clearly evidence 
that the development can demonstrate phosphate neutrality or betterment in its design and/or 
its contribution to the river (water body).  
 
The appended Paper outlines the approach the authority has taken in responding to the 
challenges posed by the NRW guidance. 
 
 
 
 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES  
 

 
 

Tudalen 44



 

 
IMPLICATIONS  

 

 
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report : 
 
Signed:            Rhodri Griffiths                                                       Head of Place and Sustainability                            
 

 
Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and 
Equalities 
 

Legal  Finance  ICT  Risk 
Management 
Issues  

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets   

YES /  
 

YES  
 

YES  
 

NONE  
 

YES  
 

YES  
 
 

YES  
 

 
1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities 
The impact, arising from the publication of the NRW Phosphate Guidance along with the Councils 
legal duties under the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended) has 
direct impacts on the implementation of Planning Policy in the form of the adopted LDP as well as 
the emerging Revised LDP. It also as a constraint to certain developments in identified areas may 
impact on other strategies of the authority and partners including those in relation to Housing and 
Regeneration as well as certain settlements within the Ten Towns Initiative. Reference is made to 
the Well-being Goals set out within the Well-being of Future Generations Act 2015 noting that the 
benefits associated with improvements to environmental qualities and the condition of our Rivers 
as well as the promotion of sustainable, cohesive communities with access to homes, jobs and 
local services and facilities.   

 
2. Legal   
Reference is had to sources of primary and secondary legislation including the Environment 
(Wales) Act and the Well-being of Future Generations Act 2015.  In considering the issues 
associated with phosphate levels in protected Riverine SACs regard is had to the provisions 
of the Habitat Regulations as transposed into the Conservation of Habitats and Species 
Regulations 2017 (as amended) and our legal duties as the competent authority. 

 
3. Finance   

Work associated with the response to phosphates is being delivered through existing financial 
provisions and grant support from the Welsh Government. 
Additional support will where identified be sought as appropriate with use of external funding 
sources also utilised.  

 

 
 

Tudalen 45



 

5. Risk Management Issues 
Impacts arising from phosphates is identified as a corporate risk register and appropriate 
control measures have been identified.  

6. Physical Assets   
Potential for implications on Council landholdings - the extent and nature of the potential 
impact to be confirmed. 

7. Staffing Implications 
Funding is met through current financial provisions and external grant funding. 

Future staffing requirements to address and implement solutions and mitigation associated 
with phosphates will be subject to future DoR’s. 

 
CABINET MEMBER PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER AWARE/CONSULTED  
 

YES 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW      
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection  

Carmarthenshire 
Phosphate webpage 
 

 https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/counc
il-services/planning/ecology-advice/new-phosphate-
targets/#.Y-OSZHbP2Uk 
 

NRW Phosphate 
Guidance 
 

 https://naturalresourceswales.gov.uk/splash?orig=
%2fguidance-and-advice%2fbusiness-
sectors%2fplanning-and-development%2four-role-
in-planning-and-development%2fadvice-to-planning-
authorities-for-planning-applications-affecting-
phosphorus-sensitive-river-special-areas-of-
conservation%2f%3flang%3den%3flang%3den&lang
=cy 
 

 
 

 
 

Tudalen 46

https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/planning/ecology-advice/new-phosphate-targets/#.Y-OSZHbP2Uk
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/planning/ecology-advice/new-phosphate-targets/#.Y-OSZHbP2Uk
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/planning/ecology-advice/new-phosphate-targets/#.Y-OSZHbP2Uk
https://naturalresourceswales.gov.uk/splash?orig=%2fguidance-and-advice%2fbusiness-sectors%2fplanning-and-development%2four-role-in-planning-and-development%2fadvice-to-planning-authorities-for-planning-applications-affecting-phosphorus-sensitive-river-special-areas-of-conservation%2f%3flang%3den%3flang%3den&lang=cy
https://naturalresourceswales.gov.uk/splash?orig=%2fguidance-and-advice%2fbusiness-sectors%2fplanning-and-development%2four-role-in-planning-and-development%2fadvice-to-planning-authorities-for-planning-applications-affecting-phosphorus-sensitive-river-special-areas-of-conservation%2f%3flang%3den%3flang%3den&lang=cy
https://naturalresourceswales.gov.uk/splash?orig=%2fguidance-and-advice%2fbusiness-sectors%2fplanning-and-development%2four-role-in-planning-and-development%2fadvice-to-planning-authorities-for-planning-applications-affecting-phosphorus-sensitive-river-special-areas-of-conservation%2f%3flang%3den%3flang%3den&lang=cy
https://naturalresourceswales.gov.uk/splash?orig=%2fguidance-and-advice%2fbusiness-sectors%2fplanning-and-development%2four-role-in-planning-and-development%2fadvice-to-planning-authorities-for-planning-applications-affecting-phosphorus-sensitive-river-special-areas-of-conservation%2f%3flang%3den%3flang%3den&lang=cy
https://naturalresourceswales.gov.uk/splash?orig=%2fguidance-and-advice%2fbusiness-sectors%2fplanning-and-development%2four-role-in-planning-and-development%2fadvice-to-planning-authorities-for-planning-applications-affecting-phosphorus-sensitive-river-special-areas-of-conservation%2f%3flang%3den%3flang%3den&lang=cy
https://naturalresourceswales.gov.uk/splash?orig=%2fguidance-and-advice%2fbusiness-sectors%2fplanning-and-development%2four-role-in-planning-and-development%2fadvice-to-planning-authorities-for-planning-applications-affecting-phosphorus-sensitive-river-special-areas-of-conservation%2f%3flang%3den%3flang%3den&lang=cy
https://naturalresourceswales.gov.uk/splash?orig=%2fguidance-and-advice%2fbusiness-sectors%2fplanning-and-development%2four-role-in-planning-and-development%2fadvice-to-planning-authorities-for-planning-applications-affecting-phosphorus-sensitive-river-special-areas-of-conservation%2f%3flang%3den%3flang%3den&lang=cy
https://naturalresourceswales.gov.uk/splash?orig=%2fguidance-and-advice%2fbusiness-sectors%2fplanning-and-development%2four-role-in-planning-and-development%2fadvice-to-planning-authorities-for-planning-applications-affecting-phosphorus-sensitive-river-special-areas-of-conservation%2f%3flang%3den%3flang%3den&lang=cy


 PLACE, SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE CHANGE  
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

24 FEBRUARY 2023 
 

Phosphate Levels in Protected Riverine Special Areas of 
Conservation – Update 

 
Appended Report 
 
  
1. Background  
 
Phosphorous is a nutrient that occurs naturally in low levels and is necessary for the 
healthy functioning of rivers. It is released slowly at low levels from natural sources, from 
natural bankside erosion for example. However, in high levels it is the most harmful nutrient 
in freshwater and can lead to eutrophication - where an excess of nutrients causes a dense 
growth of plant life and subsequent death of animal life due to lack of oxygen.  
 
The main sources of phosphorus are agriculture (found in fertilisers and runoff from 
manure) and sewage (from homes and other developments that generate wastewater 
containing sewage, food waste and cleaning products).  
 
Whilst farmland is naturally able to absorb phosphorus, some of the land in Wales has now 
reached a saturation point and is unable to absorb the excessive quantities. Growing 
populations and increased housing have resulted in rising levels of phosphorus in 
wastewater. This is causing damage to the rivers and ecosystems it supports.  
 
In January 2021 Natural Resources Wales (NRW) published new targets to reduce river 
phosphate levels in special areas of conservation (SAC) across Wales.  
 
The review followed evidence from the Joint Nature Conservation Committee that warmer 
and drier weather, predicted because of climate change, could reduce river flows during 
the summer and therefore increase phosphate concentrations. It is also based on new 
evidence about the damaging effects of phosphates to water ecosystems and species.  
 
At present, over 60% of waterbodies in Wales fail against the tighter targets, and 
Welsh local planning authorities are being asked to take more action to avoid further 
deterioration of the environment. It means any proposals for development within SAC 
river catchments - in particular those that will generate increased volume or 
concentration of wastewater - must now prove that the design will not contribute to 
increased phosphate levels.  
  

Tudalen 47



 
2. Impact of the guidance on planning within Carmarthenshire  

 
Developments within the catchments of the protected rivers may have an impact 
through increasing phosphate levels including through limited capacity to connect to 
the public sewerage system.  As a result, alternative solutions must be found that will 
meet the new targets, either by being phosphate neutral or bettering phosphate levels.   
 
In Carmarthenshire, the Afon Teifi, Afon Tywi, River Wye and Afon Cleddau are 
designated as riverine special areas of conservation. At present the Afon Teifi, river 
Wye and Afon Cleddau are failing against NRW’s targets. 
  
The Impact arising from phosphates and the NRW Guidance in relation to protected 
Riverine SACs is a potential strategic barrier to the future growth of communities within 
affected catchments. It is noted that different catchments have different status with the 
Teifi and Cleddau failing and the Tywi catchment currently passing. Approximately 109 
planning applications in Carmarthenshire have been captured by the implications of 
the guidance, but also poses significant challenges in the progression of the Revised 
LDP.  This has required innovative evidence to be developed for the 2nd Deposit LDP 
to be produced.  
 
Other affected authorities include Monmouthshire, Pembrokeshire, Ceredigion, 
Powys, Flintshire, Wrexham and the Brecon Beacons National Park. 
 
  
3. Actions taken by Carmarthenshire Council  

 
In recognising the strategic significance Carmarthenshire has and continues to lead 
the way in Wales in developing approaches aimed at enabling developments to 
proceed. In outline, the Authority has adopted a four-phase integrated approach and 
the progress to each phase is set out below:  
 

• Phase 1 - Strategic Assessment – Development of a Phosphate 
Calculator, Phosphate Mitigation Guidance and Catchment Phosphorous 
Reduction Strategies 

 
The publication of Carmarthenshire council’s phosphate calculator in March 2022 is 
the first (and to date the only) of a kind in Wales. The Calculator is accompanied by 
Mitigation Guidance. This also represents the only example in Wales and has been 
developed as part of a proactive approach to provide support to planning applicants 
and developers in identifying mitigation to allow planning applications to be determined 
and approved.  We are also supporting and working collaboratively with 
Pembrokeshire and Ceredigion on a sub-regional calculator to reflect the cross-order 
implications and the collaboration being undertaken through the Nutrient Management 
Boards.  Our approach reflected the absence of an All-Wales approach and guidance.  
NRW are currently developing the tools at an All-Wales approach, based upon the 
platform that CCC has developed, and which allows us the opportunity to influence 
development as an early adopter of the approach.  However, the All-Wales approach 
is not likely to be approved by the WG until the summer 2023 at the earliest.  
 

Tudalen 48



An interim Catchment Phosphorous Reduction Strategy has been prepared to support 
the preparation and progress of the Revised LDP, it seeks to identify a range of 
mitigation measures, as well as wider measures that are outside of the remit of the 
Council and lie with other responsible bodies in relation to the wider riverine 
environment. These will be linked to a series of delivery milestones designed to ensure 
that the implementation of suitable mitigation happens in a manner that facilitates the 
release of development in the Plan.  This represents a key step in identifying mitigation 
necessary to ensure the release of development over the LDP period. 
 
Recognising the challenges associated with the phosphate guidance the Councils 
response included the appointment of a Nutrient Management Officer – this role has 
supported the strategic response required.  
 

• Phase 2 - Collaboration - Establish the Nutrient Management Board and 
development of the Nutrient management plan.  

 
A Nutrient Management Board (NMB) has been established the Afon Tywi NMB (first 
in Wales) and we are board members of the Afon Teifi and Cleddau NMB’s along with 
the regulators, utility companies etc. The Board will play a critical role in addressing 
the issue and in solution finding overseeing the development of Nutrient Management 
Plans for the area and provide a forum for the development of solutions including credit 
trading.  We have helped to establish and are members of the Tywi NMB and the 
Cleddau NMB and represent the interests of Carmarthenshire at these boards. The 
boards will be supported by a Technical Working Group made up of partner and 
specialist bodies and a Stakeholder Group which will involve local group, communities 
and individuals and will enable us to explore solutions at a local level and through 
Citizen Science based approaches. 
 
A Programme Manager has been appointed to support the work of the NMBs – this 
represents a key deliverable to take forward the complex mechanisms necessary in 
the effective operation and work of the Boards. 
 

• Phase 3 - Develop mitigating solutions - Work with partners to develop test 
solutions that are acceptable to the regulators.  
 

As a result of the publication of the calculator and mitigation guidance applicants who 
have previously been caught by the guidance have been given the opportunity to 
submit details of mitigation proposals for assessment.   
 
We are working on opportunities for Credit Trading and are undertaking a feasibility 
study to further develop this approach.  This would on delivery of mitigation schemes 
allow developers/applicants to buy or access mitigation to allow their development to 
proceed.   
  

Tudalen 49



 
We continue to work with developers, partners, and regulators to identify and broker 
new approaches such as potential for surface water diversion which in sewered areas 
can reduce storm water events that have a detrimental impact on phosphate loading.   
 
We are currently identifying potential locations for mitigation solutions including larger 
landscape solutions such as constructed wetlands. Such approaches will require 
collaboration with regulators but also critically Dwr Cymru to ensure the location 
maximises the potential for phosphate removal.   
 
 
 

• Phase 4 - Develop policy, approaches, and solutions  
 

We continue to facilitate and guide policy updates to the implementation of NRW 
guidance with the regulators. This has been successful in putting in place a positive 
policy approach to overnight accommodation e.g., employment, schools, community 
activities.  Work has been undertaken with our consultants to understand/challenge 
how guidance is implemented within the Tywi catchment given its non-failing status.  
 
We have sought to adopt a positive approach to certain planning applications including 
those for extensions to dwellings which were previously being held up by the NRW 
Guidance.  
 
In July 2022 in recognition of the leadership we have demonstrated in 
Carmarthenshire, we were invited to the Phosphate Solutions Summit held by the First 
Minister at the Royal Welsh Show. A further summit will take place in March 2023; 
however, we are continuing to engage with regulators and the Welsh Government to 
influence the future regulatory framework and in particular application on any national 
guidance to address the issue.  In this respect the NMBs for the Tywi, Teifi and 
Cleddau are also represented on the WG Oversight Group charged to respond to the 
issues of phosphates as is a representative of Carmarthenshire in recognition of our 
work in this area. 

We are also represented on national collaborative groups and have led and chaired 
an Additionality Working Group which successfully facilitated the changes to the NRW 
Guidance on the issue of overnight accommodation. 

Tudalen 50



 

 
PWYLLGOR CRAFFU  

LLE, CYNALIADWYEDD A NEWID YR HINSAWDD 
 

23 IONAWR 2023 
 

 
EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL 

 
Ystyried y materion canlynol a chyflwyno sylwadau arnynt: 
 
Nodi’r eitemau ar gyfer y dyfodol i’w hystyried yng nghyfarfod nesaf y Pwyllgor Craffu Lle, 
Cynaliadwyedd a Newid yr Hinsawdd i’w gynnal ar 24 Chwefror, 2023. 

 
 
Rhesymau:  
 

 
Mae’n ofynnol yn ôl Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor bod Pwyllgorau Craffu, ar dechrau bob blwyddyn y 
cyngor, yn datblygu ac yn cyhoeddi Blaenraglen Gwaith sy’n nodi’r pynciau a’r adroddiadau sydd 
i’w hystyried yn ystod y blwyddyn.      

 
 
 

 
Angen cyfeirio’r mater at y Cabinet er mwyn gwneud penderfyniad:  NAC OES 
 
 
Yr Aelod Cabinet sy’n gyfrifol am y Portffolio:    
Cyng. Aled Vaughan Owen (Newid Hinsawdd, Datgarboneiddio a Chynaliadwyedd 
Cyng. Edward Thomas (Wasanaethau Trafnidiaeth, Gwastraff a Seilwaith) 
 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad: 
 
Janine Owen 
 

 
Swydd: 
 
Swyddog Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd  
 

 
Rhifau Ffôn / Cyfeiriad E-Bost: 
 
01267 224030 
JanineOwen@sirgar.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 51

Eitem Rhif  6



 

 
PLACE, SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE CHANGE  

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

23RD JANUARY 2023 
 

 
FORTHCOMING ITEMS 

 
 

The Council’s Constitution requires Scrutiny Committees, at the commencement of each municipal 
year, to develop and publish a Forward Work Plan which identifies the issues and reports to be 
considered at meetings during the course of the year.  When formulating the Forward Work 
Programme the Scrutiny Committee took into consideration those items included on the Cabinet’s 
Forward Work Plan. 

The list of forthcoming items attached includes those items which are scheduled in the Place, 
Sustainability and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee’s Forward Work Plan to be considered at 
the next meeting, to be held on 24th February, 2023. 

Scrutiny Committee members, as part of their role are required to regularly refer to the Cabinet 
Forward Plan in order to identify any future pre-decision reports, within the scrutiny remit for 
inclusion onto the Committee's FWP. 

Council/Cabinet Forward Plan can be viewed by clicking HERE 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT ATTACHED? 
 

YES: 
• List of Forthcoming Items; 
• Items circulated to the Committee under separate cover since 

the last meeting held on 15th December 2022; 
• Place, Sustainability and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee -  

Forward Work Plan. 
 
 

Tudalen 52

https://democratiaeth.sirgar.llyw.cymru/mgListPlanItems.aspx?PlanId=17&RP=131


 

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with 
this report.  
  
Signed:    Linda Rees-Jones 

 
                              Head of Administration & Law  

 
Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and Equalities 

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical Assets  

 
NONE 
 

 
NONE 

 
NONE  

 
NONE 

 
NONE 

 
NONE 

 
NONE 

 
CABINET MEMBER PORTFOLIO HOLDER 
AWARE / CONSULTED  
 

YES 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
Title of Document 
 

Locations that the papers are available for public inspection  

Cabinet Forward 
Plan  

https://democratiaeth.sirgar.llyw.cymru/mgListPlanItems.aspx?PlanId=17&RP=1
31 

 
 

 

Tudalen 53



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

 
 

FORTHCOMING ITEMS  
for next meeting to be held on 14th April 2023 

 
In order to ensure effective Scrutiny, Members need to be clear as to the purpose of requesting specific 
information and the outcome they are hoping to achieve as a consequence of examining a report.   
 

 
Proposed  
Agenda Item  

Background 
 

Reason for report 
 

Cabinet Member 

Budget 
Monitoring April 
2022 to 
December 2022 

This is a standard bi-monthly budget 
report covering the revenue and 
capital budgets for the Environment 
Department, Public Protection 
Services and Community Safety 
which fall within the remit of the 
Place, Sustainability and Climate 
Change Scrutiny Committee 
 

To enable members to 
exercise their scrutiny role. 

Cllr. Alun Lenny - 
Cabinet Member 
for Resources 

Task and Finish 
Group Report 
Review of the 
Management of 
Fly-tipping in 
Carmarthenshire 

The Committee at its FWP 
Development Session held on 9th 
April 2021, considered a topic 
suggestion received from 
Llandyfaelog Community Council 
suggesting that the Committee 
consider the issues in relation to fly-
tipping in Carmarthenshire. 
Committee Members recognised 
that fly tipping was an increasing 
problem in Carmarthenshire and 
that the consequence of fly-tipping 
had a detrimental effect on the 
environment and communities.   In 
agreement with the Committee, the 
review was deferred to take 
following the Elections in May 2022. 
 
The Committee, at its meeting in 
November 2022, considered a 
revised Planning and Scoping 
Document and formulated a Task 
and Finish Group to undertake the 
review. 

A final report of the Task and 
Finish Group’s review will be 
presented to the Committee 
for consideration and 
comment.  
 

Councillor Aled 
Vaughan Owen  
Cabinet 
Member for 
Sustainability, 
Decarbonisation 
and Climate 
Change 

Carmarthenshire 
County 
Council’s 
Corporate 
Strategy 
 

To update the Corporate Strategy 
and Well-being Objectives 

Members of the Scrutiny 
Committee requested the 
opportunity to consider the 
content of the strategy. 
 

Leader of the 
Council 

Tudalen 55



 

Proposed  
Agenda Item  

Background 
 

Reason for report 
 

Cabinet Member 

Departmental 
Business Plans  
2023/24-2024/25 
 
Extracts relevant 
to this scrutiny’s 
remit 
 

As part of the Business Plan 
Development process, the 
Committee is invited to consider and 
comment on the Departmental 
Business Plans 2023/24 – 2024/25 
relevant to its remit. 
 

Scrutiny Members 
requested to receive the 
departmental business 
plans to provide them with 
an opportunity to scrutinise 
the development and 
implementation of service 
business plans including the 
monitoring of progress 
against specified actions 
and targets [in accordance 
with Article 6, 6.2 - Generic 
Terms of Reference for all 
Scrutiny Committees]. 
 
The Committee will be able to 
consider, comment and make 
any recommendations for 
changes to the Departmental 
Business Plans in respect of 
the plans for 2023/24 – 
2024/25. 
 
 
 
 

Cllr Aled 
Vaughan Owen – 
Cabinet Member 
for Sustainability, 
Decarbonisation 
and Climate 
Change 
 
Cllr. Edward 
Thomas - Cabinet 
Member for 
Transport, Waste 
and Infrastructure 
Services  

 
 

Items to be circulated under a separate cover to Scrutiny Committee members 
(as agreed at the Committee’s Forward Work Programme development session on  

21st September 2022 and 1st November 2022) 
Proposed Agenda 
Item  

Background 
 

Reason for report 
 

Cabinet Member 

 
In accordance with the Committee’s Forward Work Programme, there are no reports to be circulated outside of 
the formal Committee process. 
 

 

Tudalen 56



 
Items circulated to the Committee under separate cover since the last 

meeting held on 23rd January 2023 
(in accordance with the Committee’s Forward Work Programme) 

 
In line with the Place, Sustainability and Climate Change Committee’s decision to receive and 
scrutinise reports outside of the formal committee process, the following reports were forwarded to 
all members of the Scrutiny Committee by e-mail on 30th January 2023: 

 
1. 

ADRODDIAD MONITRO CYLLIDEB CYFALAF A REFENIW 2022/23 /  
REVENUE & CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2022/23  

 
2. POLISI BAGIAU TYWOD 2022 /  

SANDBAG POLICY 2022 

3. ADRODDIAD EITHRIEDIG YN UNOL Â PHARAGRAFF 14 O RAN 4 O 
ATODLEN 12(A) I DDEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL 1972, FEL Y’I 
DIWYGIWYD GAN ORCHYMYN LLYWODRAETH LEOL (MYNEDIAD AT 
WYBODAETH) (AMRYWIO) (CYMRU) 2007, GAN EI FOD YN YMWNEUD Â 
GWYBODAETH AM FATERION ARIANNOL NEU FUSNES UNRHYW 
UNIGOLYN (GAN GYNNWYS YR AWDURDOD SY'N MEDDU AR Y 
WYBODAETH HONNO) 
 
CYNLLUN BUSNES AC ADRODDIAD CYNNYDD HANNER BLWYDDYN 
CWM ENVIRONMENTAL LTD 2022-2023 /   

 
EXEMPT REPORT IN PURSUANT OF PARAGRAPH 14 OF PART 4 OF 
SCHEDULE 12(A) TO THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972, AS AMENDED 
BY THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) (VARIATION) 
(WALES) ORDER 2007 AS IT RELATES TO INFORMATION RELATING TO 
FINANCIAL OR BUDSINESS AFFAIRS OF ANY PARTICULAR PERSON 
(INCLUDING THE AUTHORITY HOLDING THAT INFORMATION) 
 
CWM ENVIRONMENTAL LTD 2022-2023 BUSINESS PLAN AND HALF YEAR 
PROGRESS REPORT  
 

 
 
 
The Committee had no observation/comments/queries in relation to the above reports. 
 

Tudalen 57



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Updated 6/2/23 

Place, Sustainability and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee - Forward Work Plan 2022/23 

4th October 2022 24th November 2022 
15th December 

2022 
23rd January 2023 

24th February 
2023 

14th April 2023 May 2023 

E&PP Scrutiny Annual 
Report 2021/22 

Highways Asset 
Management Plan Annual 
Statement update 

Quarterly 
Performance 
Monitoring Report 
Q2 

Highways Maintenance 
Manual 

CCC Strategy for 
Trees and 
Woodland 

Budget Monitoring  
April 2022 to 
December 2022 

 

E&PP Scrutiny 
Committee Actions 
Update report 
2021/22. 

Air Quality Management 
Area (AQMA) Report 

Electric Vehicle 
Charging 
Infrastructure 
Strategy – 12 month 
review 

Revenue Budget 
Consultation 2023/24 – 
2025/26 

Phosphate levels in 
rivers within 
Special Areas of 
Conservation 

CCC Corporate 
Strategy 

 

E&PP Forward Work 
Programme 2022/23 

County Council Annual 
Report 

Waste Strategy Equestrian Strategy  
Departmental 
Business Plans 

 

Net Zero Carbon 
Annual Progress 
report  

To revise the Task and 
Finish Planning and 
Scoping Document on Fly- 
Tipping 

 
WG Speed Limit 
Changes in Legislation 
(20MPH) 

 

Task and Finish 
Group Report on 
the Management of 
Fly-tipping in 
Carmarthenshire.  

 

Environment Act 
Forward Plan Update 
 

Public Space Protection 
Order (Enhancement on 
dog related controls) 

 
Departmental Business 
Plans (deferred to 
24/1/22) 

  
 

Scrutiny Committee Members to scrutinise the following reports via e-mail – Forthcoming Items to include feedback.  
As agreed at the Committees Forward Work Plan Development Sessions held on 21st September 2022 and 1st November 2022 

 

Quarterly 
Performance 
Monitoring Report Q1 

Task & Finish 
Implementation Report – 
FESS Financial 
Exploitation & 
Safeguarding Scheme 

CCC Corporate 
Strategy (deferred) 

Budget Monitoring  
April 2022 to October 
2022 

  

 

Communities 
Departmental 
Business Plan 2022-
23 

Highway Drainage Design 
Guide 
 

Graffiti Policy 
Sandbag Policy 2022 

 
  

 

Budget Monitoring -  
21/22 Outturn  
April 22 to June 2022 

Budget Monitoring  
April 2022 to August 2022 

 
CWM Business Plan 
and Progress Report 

  

 

 

T
udalen 59



Updated 6/2/23 

 

 
PS&CC Scrutiny Member – Focussed Development Sessions:- 
 

The Committee has requested for the following focused development sessions to take place following each of the scheduled formal 
Committee meetings (unless otherwise notified). 
 

• Highway Asset Management Plan Annual Statement –14th November 2022 

• Waste / Local Environment Quality Strategy –24th November 2022 

• Flooding – 15th December 2022 

• Conservation and update on the managing land pilot scheme for Pollinators in Carmarthenshire – 23rd January 2023 

• Substance Use – 9th March 2023 

• To be determined – April 2023 
 

• WG Speed Limit Change in Legislation (20mph) –Workshop Oct/Nov via Highways & Transport  
 

 

TASK & FINISH REVIEW: 
 
The Committee at its FWP Development Session held on 9th April 2021, considered a topic suggestion received from Llandyfaelog Community 
Council suggesting that the Committee consider the issues in relation to fly-tipping in Carmarthenshire.  Committee Members recognised that fly 
tipping was an increasing problem in Carmarthenshire and that the consequence of fly-tipping had a detrimental effect on the environment and 
communities. 
 
The Committee at its meeting on 2nd July 2021 unanimously resolved that its Task and Finish arrangements for 2021-22-23 would be as follows:  

1) *Review on the Fly tipping within Carmarthenshire 
2) Review on Dog Breeding in Carmarthenshire. 

 
Update: The Task and Finish Group at its first meeting on 8th September, 2021 received an update from the Director of Environment on internal 
matters that had arisen since the Scrutiny Committee agreement on its Task and Finish arrangements and the endorsement of the review 
planning and scoping document in July.  Considering the information received, the Group unanimously agreed to defer the review on Flytipping to 
2022 following the Election process.  The Committee at its meeting on 25th November 2021 received and noted a report from the Task and Finish 
Group which outlined the reasons for the deferral. A revised Planning and Scoping Document was endorsed on 24th November 2022. 
 
*This decision supersedes the Committee’s decision made at its meeting held on 15th November 2019 – “unanimously resolved that dog breeding in 
Carmarthenshire be the subject for Committee’s next Task and Finish review in 2021”.   

 
 

T
udalen 60



 

 
 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU  
LLE, CYNALIADWYEDD A NEWID HINSAWDD 

 
23 IONAWR 2023  

 
 

PRESENNOL Cynghorydd J.D. James (Cadeirydd) 
 
Cynghorwyr (Yn y Siambr): 
T.A.J. Davies K. Davies B.D.J. Phillips G.B. Thomas 

 
Cynghorwyr (Yn rhithwir): 
S.M. Allen D.M. Cundy M. Donoghue W.T. Evans 
T.M. Higgins N. Lewis   
 
Hefyd yn bresennol  (Yn y Siambr): 
Cynghorydd A. Lenny, Yr Aelod Cabinet dros Adnoddau; 
Cynghorydd A. Vaughan Owen, Yr Aelod Cabinet dros Newid Hinsawdd, Datgarboneiddio 
a Chynaliadwyedd; 
Cynghorydd E. Thomas, Yr Aelod Cabinet dros Transport, Gwasanaethau Trafnidiaeth, 
Gwastraff a Seilwaith. 
 
Hefyd yn bresennol (Yn y Siambr): 
A. Williams, Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Amgylcheddol a Gwastraff; 
J. Morgan, Pennaeth Cartrefi a Chymunedau Mwy Diogel; 
S. Pilliner, Pennaeth Priffyrdd a Thrafnidiaeth; 
J. Edwards, Rheolwr Gwella Busnes; 
R. Hemingway, Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Ariannol; 
D.W. John, Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Gwastraff ac Amgylcheddol Dros Dro; 
R. S. Waters, Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Priffyrdd a Thrafnidiaeth; 
R. James, Cyfrifydd Grŵp; 
M. Runeckles, Swyddog Cefnogi Aelodau; 
A. Eynon, Prif Gyfieithydd; 
J. Owen, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd. 
 
Hefyd yn bresennol  (Yn rhithwyr): 
R. Griffiths, Pennaeth Lle a Chynaliadwyedd; 
M.S. Davies, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd. 
 
Siambr, Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin, SA31 1JP: 2:00yp - 4:00yp 
 
1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 

 
Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan Gynghorwyr S. Godfrey-Coles, C. 
Evans, G. Jones a P. Cooper. 
  
 

Tudalen 61

Eitem Rhif  7



 

2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL GAN GYNNWYS UNRHYW 
CHWIPIAU PLEIDIAU A RODDIR MEWN YMATEB I UNRHYW EITEM AR YR 
AGENDA. 
 
Ni chafwyd dim datganiadau ynghylch chwip waharddedig. 
  
Y Cynghorydd Rhif y Cofnod(ion)  Y Math o Fuddiant 
A. Davies  5 - Ymgynghori ynghylch Strategaeth 

Cyllideb Refeniw 2023/24 hyd at 2025/26 
Mae hawliau tramwy 
cyhoeddus yn croesi tir y 
mae'n berchen arno. 

 D. Phillips  5 - Ymgynghori ynghylch Strategaeth 
Cyllideb Refeniw 2023/24 hyd at 2025/26 

Mae hawliau tramwy 
cyhoeddus yn croesi tir y 
mae'n berchen arno. 

 G. Thomas  5 - Ymgynghori ynghylch Strategaeth 
Cyllideb Refeniw 2023/24 hyd at 2025/26 

Mae hawliau tramwy 
cyhoeddus yn croesi tir y 
mae'n berchen arno. 

 
3. CWESTIYNAU GAN Y CYHOEDD (NID OEDD DIM WEDI DOD I LAW) 

 
Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd dim cwestiynau wedi dod i law gan y cyhoedd. 
   

4. EGLURHAD AM BEIDIO Â CHYFLWYNO ADRODDIAD CRAFFU 
 
Cafodd y Pwyllgor eglurhad am beidio â chyflwyno'r Cynlluniau Busnes Adrannol. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL: 
  
4.1      derbyn y dyddiad diwygiedig ar gyfer y Cynlluniau Busnes Adrannol; 
4.2      nodi'r esboniad dros beidio â'i gyflwyno. 
  

5. YMGYNGHORI YNGHYLCH STRATEGAETH Y GYLLIDEB REFENIW 2023/24 
TAN 2025/26 
 
[Sylwer: Roedd y Cynghorwyr A. Davies, D. Phillips a G. Thomas wedi datgan 
buddiant personol yn yr eitem hon. Bu iddynt aros yn y cyfarfod ac yn cymryd rhan 
yn y trafodaethau a'r pleidleisio yn eu cylch.] 
 
Bu'r Pwyllgor yn ystyried adroddiad ar Strategaeth Cyllideb Refeniw y Cyngor 
2023/24 i 2025/26, fel y'i cymeradwywyd gan y Cabinet at ddibenion ymgynghori yn 
ei gyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 9 Ionawr 2023. Roedd yr adroddiad yn darparu'r sefyllfa 
bresennol i'r Aelodau ynghylch y Gyllideb Refeniw ar gyfer 2023/2024, ynghyd â 
ffigurau dangosol ar gyfer blynyddoedd ariannol 2024/2025 a 2025/2026, yn 
seiliedig ar ragamcanion ynghylch gofynion gwariant y swyddogion ac yn ystyried y 
setliad amodol a gyhoeddwyd gan Lywodraeth Cymru ar 14 Rhagfyr 2022.  
  
Dywedodd y Pwyllgor, er bod y setliad amodol a gyhoeddwyd yn cynrychioli 
cynnydd cyfartalog o 8.0% ledled Cymru ar setliad 2022/23, fod cynnydd Sir 
Gaerfyrddin wedi bod yn 8.5% (£26.432m) gan felly gymryd y Cyllid Allanol Cyfun i 
£338.017m ar gyfer 2023/24. Er bod y setliad yn sylweddol uwch na'r ffigwr 
dangosol cychwynnol, sef cynnydd o 3.4%, ac yn darparu tua £15.5m yn fwy na 
rhagdybiaeth wreiddiol y Cyngor, roedd Llywodraeth Cymru wedi cydnabod na 
fyddai'r ffigwr cynyddol yn ddigonol o hyd i ymdopi â'r pwysau chwyddiant oedd yn 
wynebu cynghorau, dyfarniadau cyflog, a'r cynnydd mewn prisiau tanwydd, ac 
roedd penderfyniadau anodd i'w gwneud. 

Tudalen 62



 

  
Tra bo cynigion y gyllideb yn tybio bod yr holl gynigion am arbedion yn cael eu 
cyflawni'n llawn, nodwyd byddai angen gwneud gwaith pellach i ddatblygu'r 
gostyngiadau mewn costau ar gyfer blynyddoedd ariannol 2024/25 a 2025/26 er 
mwyn gallu cynnal y Strategaeth Cyllideb a'r lefel Treth Gyngor presennol.   
  
Dywedwyd, o ystyried risgiau presennol Strategaeth y Gyllideb a'r cefndir parhaus o 
ran chwyddiant ynghyd â gwasgfeydd cyllidebol eraill, fod y cynnydd arfaethedig yn 
y Dreth Gyngor ar gyfer 2023/24 wedi'i osod yn 7% i liniaru gostyngiadau i 
wasanaethau critigol. Ym mlynyddoedd 2 a 3 roedd y darlun ariannol dal yn ansicr, 
ac, o'r herwydd, roedd codiadau dangosol enghreifftiol o 4% a 3% yn y Dreth 
Gyngor wedi cael eu gwneud at ddibenion cynllunio'n unig, gan geisio taro 
cydbwysedd gyda'r gostyngiadau yn y gyllideb. Byddai'r cynigion hynny yn cael eu 
hystyried gan y Cyngor wrth bennu lefel y Dreth Gyngor ar gyfer 2023/24 yn ei 
gyfarfod ar 1 Mawrth 2023. Yn ogystal, roedd ffigur setliad terfynol Llywodraeth 
Cymru i gael ei gyhoeddi ar 7 Mawrth 2023 a byddai unrhyw ddiwygiadau yr oedd 
yn ofynnol eu hystyried i strategaeth y gyllideb o'r cyhoeddiad hwnnw hefyd yn cael 
eu hystyried gan y Cyngor. 
  
Bu'r Pwyllgor yn ystyried y wybodaeth gyllidebol fanwl ganlynol a oedd wedi'i hatodi 
i'r Strategaeth ac a oedd yn berthnasol i'w faes gorchwyl: 
  
• Atodiad A(i) – Crynodeb effeithlonrwydd ar gyfer Gwasanaethau Diogelu'r 

Cyhoedd a'r Amgylchedd; 
• Atodiad A(ii) – Crynodeb o'r Pwysau Twf ar gyfer Gwasanaeth yr Amgylchedd; 
• Atodiad B – Adroddiad monitro'r gyllideb ar gyfer Gwasanaethau Diogelu'r 

Cyhoedd a'r Amgylchedd; 
• Atodiad C – Crynhoad Taliadau ar gyfer Gwasanaethau Diogelu'r Cyhoedd a'r 

Amgylchedd. 
  
Codwyd y cwestiynau/materion canlynol ar yr adroddiad:- 
  
Ymholiadau a godwyd ar yr Atodiad Ai (Cynigion Arbedion): 
  
•      Cyfeiriwyd at Reoli Traffig a gweithredu cynlluniau diogelwch ffyrdd/rheoli 

cyflymder.  O ran y disgrifiad o'r arbedion effeithlonrwydd 'Moratoriwm tair 
blynedd ar derfynau cyflymder newydd sydd heb eu cynnwys o fewn 
deddfwriaeth 20mya oni bai bod mater diogelwch hollbwysig', dywedwyd bod 
tair blynedd yn amser hir a gofynnwyd a ellid delio â hyn ar y cyd â'r broses o 
gyflwyno'r ddeddfwriaeth 20mya newydd?  Dywedodd y Pennaeth Priffyrdd a 
Thrafnidiaeth fod y newid i'r terfyn cyflymder diofyn o 30mya i 20mya sy'n 
effeithio ar bob ardal breswyl yn ddarn cynhwysfawr o waith oedd yn cynnwys 
llawer o adnoddau.  Dywedwyd bod y moratoriwm yn realistig o ran y gwaith 
helaeth sydd ei angen. 
 

•      Mewn ymateb i ymholiad ynghylch y disgrifiad o'r arbedion effeithlonrwydd - 
Arloesi Diogelwch ar y Ffordd ym maes Rheoli Traffig, esboniodd y Pennaeth 
Priffyrdd a Thrafnidiaeth y byddai adroddiad ar Noddi Cylchfannau ar gael cyn 
bo hir.  Roedd y tîm priffyrdd wedi bod yn gweithio i ddod o hyd i ffyrdd a dulliau 
o gynyddu refeniw yn enwedig yn dilyn y pandemig ac roedd nawdd yn ddull a 
fyddai'n darparu incwm yr oedd mawr ei angen. 
 

Tudalen 63



 

•      Wrth gyfeirio at y Cludiant Ysgol a'r disgrifiad o'r arbedion effeithlonrwydd o ran 
Cyllidebau Teithio Personol Anghenion Ychwanegol, gofynnwyd am eglurhad 
mewn perthynas â'r broses dalu.  Esboniodd y Pennaeth Priffyrdd a 
Thrafnidiaeth fod disgyblion ag anghenion dysgu ychwanegol ar hyn o bryd yn 
cael opsiwn o gael mynediad at gludiant arbenigol.  Mewn achosion lle mae gan 
rieni gerbydau symudedd arbenigol, cafodd cyllideb deithio bersonol ei chynnig 
a fyddai'n destun cais sy'n cael ei wneud gan y rhiant. 
  
Mewn ymateb i ymholiad pellach, esboniodd y Pennaeth Priffyrdd a 
Thrafnidiaeth y byddai polisi ffurfiol yn cynnwys proses ddilysu drylwyr gan 
sicrhau bod ad-daliadau yn ddilys ac wedi'u gwneud i'r person cywir.  
 

•      Wrth gyfeirio at y Safleoedd Casglu, gofynnwyd a fyddai strategaeth yn y 
dyfodol ac a fyddai'r cymunedau yn dal i allu eu defnyddio.  Esboniodd 
Pennaeth Dros Dro y Gwasanaethau Amgylcheddol a Gwastraff fod nifer o 
safleoedd casglu yn cynnwys cyfleusterau i ailgylchu gwydr, tecstilau a 
nwyddau trydan ar hyn o bryd a fyddai'n cael eu cadw yn y tymor hir.  Fodd 
bynnag, byddai'r safleoedd casglu sy'n cynnig casgliadau gwydr yn unig yn cael 
eu mapio yn erbyn y galw presennol a'r gwasanaeth casglu gwydr a lansiwyd yn 
ddiweddar.  Byddai canlyniadau'r dadansoddiad yn llywio rhesymoli'r safleoedd 
casglu dros y 12 mis nesaf gyda'r bwriad gael gwared ar hyd at 50% erbyn 
2024. 
  
Ar ben hynny, pwysleisiwyd i'r Aelodau gan yr Aelod Cabinet dros Adnoddau, o 
ystyried y ffaith bod y Cyngor yn atebol am ddirwy o £160k am bob 1% yn is na 
tharged statudol Llywodraeth Cymru na chaiff ei gyrraedd, ei bod yn bwysig i'r 
cyhoedd fod yn ymwybodol o bwysigrwydd ailgylchu, nid yn unig ar gyfer y 
manteision i'r amgylchedd ond o safbwynt ariannol. 
  

• Cyfeiriwyd at Gynnal a Chadw Eiddo.  O ran y mesurau effeithlonrwydd ynni, 
dywedwyd bod Awdurdod cyfagos yn ceisio gwneud gostyngiad yn nhymheredd 
swyddfeydd i 19 gradd er mwyn arbed £26k.  O ystyried hyn, gofynnwyd a oedd 
yr Awdurdod hwn yn edrych ar arbedion effeithlonrwydd tebyg?  Dywedwyd yr 
Aelod Cabinet dros Newid Hinsawdd, Datgarboneiddio a Chynaliadwyedd fod 
Cyngor Sir Powys, yn debyg i Gyngor Sir Caerfyrddin, wedi ymrwymo i gyflawni 
Sero Net erbyn 2030.  Atgoffwyd Aelodau, fel y nodwyd yn y Cynllun Sero Net a 
gyflwynwyd yn gynharach eleni, fod yr Awdurdod wedi gwneud lleihad carbon o 
34%, ond wrth ddadansoddi ymhellach roedd yn amlwg bod trydan 21% yn llai 
ac roedd nwy (gwres) ond 11% yn llai.  Ychwanegodd, er bod ymdrech 
sylweddol wedi digwydd i leihau carbon, mai un o'r heriau oedd bod gan yr 
Awdurdod hwn, fel nifer o Awdurdodau, lawer o hen adeiladau oedd yn anodd 
eu rhannu'n barthau.  Byddai data o ran y defnydd o ynni yn parhau i gael ei 
gasglu er mwyn llywio lle y byddai angen ymyriadau. 
   

• Cyfeiriwyd at Ganolfannau Ailgylchu Gwastraff y Cartref. Awgrymwyd y dylai'r 
Awdurdod fod yn ystyried opsiynau eraill ee. gweithio ar draws ffiniau neu 
gyflwyno tâl i'w defnyddio.  Yn ogystal, wrth ddweud bod yr oriau agor mewn 
Canolfannau Ailgylchu Gwastraff y Cartref i'w gweld yn rhy gyfyng i'r cyhoedd 
sy'n gweithio 9-5 yn ystod yr wythnos, awgrymwyd bod oriau gweithredu'r holl 
safleoedd yn cael eu hail-ystyried.   
 

Tudalen 64



 

Dywedwyd ymhellach bod staff asiantaeth yn cael eu cyflogi ar hyn o bryd ar 
safleoedd y Canolfannau Ailgylchu Gwastraff y Cartref ac y gallai'r defnydd o 
staff parhaol fod yn fwy effeithiol o ran cost.  Esboniodd Pennaeth Dros Dro y 
Gwasanaethau Amgylcheddol a Gwastraff fod Canolfannau Ailgylchu Gwastraff 
y Cartref ar hyn o bryd yn cynnig gwasanaethau am ddim i ddeiliaid tai a 
phreswylwyr Sir Gaerfyrddin a bod ffioedd blaenorol ar gyfer cwsmeriaid 
gwastraff masnach ar waith a gyflwynodd broblemau sylweddol o ran ciwio a 
chreu oedi gormodol i breswylwyr sy'n defnyddio'r safleoedd.  Mewn ymateb, 
dargyfeiriwyd gwastraff masnach i'r cyfleuster gwastraff masnach yn Nant-y-
caws, Caerfyrddin.  Amlygwyd bod ymgynghoriad yn cael ei gynnal ar hyn o 
bryd ac y byddai unrhyw awgrymiadau ac adborth yn ymwneud â'r 
gweithrediadau a'r oriau yn cael eu croesawu drwy'r broses ymgynghori.  O ran 
goblygiadau staffio, dywedodd Pennaeth Dros Dro y Gwasanaethau 
Amgylcheddol a Gwastraff y byddai'n gofyn am eglurhad pellach gan Cwm 
Environmental Ltd.   
  

• Cyfeiriwyd at y Gwasanaethau Parcio.  O ran y disgrifiad o'r arbedion 
effeithlonrwydd i ddechrau codi tâl mewn 9 maes parcio, oedd ar hyn o bryd am 
ddim i'w defnyddio, awgrymwyd y dylid edrych ar bob maes parcio fesul achos.  
Teimlwyd, drwy gyflwyno taliadau am faes parcio sydd am ddim yn bresennol, y 
byddai'n cael effaith andwyol ar fusnesau cyfagos ac yn tanseilio eu hyfywedd.   
Wrth godi pryder, gofynnwyd a fyddai'r incwm yn fwy na'r gost o godi tâl ac a 
oes unrhyw ymchwil neu arolwg wedi cael eu gwneud i gefnogi'r cynnig?  
Esboniodd y Pennaeth Priffyrdd a Thrafnidiaeth y bydd yr holl daliadau mewn 
meysydd parcio yn gyson â thollau parcio tebyg o fewn y Sir.  Amlygwyd, er y 
byddai buddsoddiad cyfalaf tymor byr i gyflwyno'r newidiadau parcio, byddai 
cynnydd i'r refeniw yn y tymor hir. 
  
Cynigiwyd yn ffurfiol, o ran y cynnig ar gyfer cyflwyno taliadau parcio yn y 9 
maes parcio, fel y nodwyd yn yr adroddiad, eu bod yn cael eu hadolygu gan yr 
Aelod Cabinet fesul achos.  Eiliwyd y cynnig hwn. 
  

• Mewn ymateb i bryder a godwyd ynghylch y cynnig i waredu hyd at 20% o finiau 
sbwriel, dywedodd Pennaeth Dros Dro y Gwasanaethau Amgylcheddol a 
Gwastraff y byddai hynny'n cynnwys biniau sbwriel sydd wedi'u lleoli mewn 
cilfannau ar hyd y rhwydwaith cefnffyrdd ac ardaloedd nad ydynt yn fwynderau 
yn bennaf.  Awgrymodd ymchwil fod y sbwriel yn yr ardal honno wedi gwella lle 
mae biniau sbwriel wedi cael eu gwaredu oddi yno.  Byddai biniau mewn 
ardaloedd lle mae nifer uchel o ymwelwyr yn cael eu cadw.  Byddai cael gwared 
ar y biniau yn broses a reolir. 
  
Gofynnwyd, cyn gwaredu bin sbwriel, a ellid ymgynghori ag aelodau'r ward 
priodol?  Dywedodd Pennaeth Dros Dro y Gwasanaethau Amgylcheddol a 
Gwastraff y byddai rhestr yn cael ei darparu i aelodau'r ward.  Gwnaed 
sylwadau mewn cytundeb bod biniau yn aml yn denu sbwriel ac yn cydnabod yr 
angen i waredu biniau sbwriel a'u gosod yn strategol. 

  
 

Tudalen 65



 

 
Ymholiadau a godwyd ar Atodiad C (Crynhoad Taliadau): 
  
•       Cyfeiriwyd at y cynnig i gynyddu'r Ffi Gweinyddu ar gyfer Hawlenni Parcio 

Preswylwyr.  Gwelwyd bod y cynnig yn dweud ei fod yn cael ei gynyddu 10%. 
Fodd bynnag, roedd y cynnydd arfaethedig yn y gost a nodwyd yn yr adroddiad, 
o £30 i £40, yn fwy na'r 10%.  Awgrymwyd cynyddu'r ffi i £50, fyddai'n cyfateb i 
lai na £1 yr wythnos i breswylwyr.  Dywedodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Adnoddau 
mai'r rhesymeg y tu ôl i'r cynnydd o £10 oedd nad oedd cynnydd wedi ei wneud 
ers 2009.  
  

•       Cyfeiriwyd at yr Hysbysiadau Cosb Benodedig.  Esboniodd yr Aelod Cabinet 
dros Newid Hinsawdd, Datgarboneiddio a Chynaliadwyedd fod y taliadau wedi'u 
hamlinellu yn Atodiad C ar gyfer yr Aelodau, ond cynigiodd amser ychwanegol 
i'r Pwyllgor Craffu pe dymunant i'r Grŵp Gorchwyl a Gorffen gynnal yr adolygiad 
ar reoli tipio anghyfreithlon yn Sir Gaerfyrddin i ystyried tâl yr Hysbysiad Cosb 
Benodedig cyn dod i gytundeb.  Dywedodd y Cadeirydd wrth ddiolch i'r Aelod 
Cabinet, y byddai'r Grŵp Gorchwyl a Gorffen yn sicrhau y byddai'r tâl mewn 
perthynas â'r Hysbysiad Cosb Benodedig ar gyfer tipio anghyfreithlon yn cael ei 
ystyried fel rhan o'r adolygiad.  

  
• Mewn ymateb i ymholiad a godwyd o ran y Cynllun Prynu â Hyder, 

cadarnhaodd y Pennaeth Cartrefi a Chymunedau Mwy Diogel wrth gynnig 
dosbarthu'r union niferoedd aelodaeth i'r cynllun i Aelodau yn dilyn y cyfarfod, 
fod y cynllun yn cael ei hyrwyddo'n weithredol. 

  
• Ystyried y gyllideb, codwyd cwestiwn cyffredinol ynghylch y targedau Sero Net.  

Yr Aelod Cabinet dros Newid Hinsawdd, Datgarboneiddio a Chynaliadwyedd  
 

• Mewn ymateb i ymholiad cyffredinol a godwyd mewn perthynas ag effaith y 
gyllideb a thargedau Sero Net, nododd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Newid Hinsawdd, 
Datgarboneiddio a Chynaliadwyedd y byddai cyfyngiadau cyllidebau yn naturiol 
yn herio'r uchelgais i gyrraedd carbon Sero Net erbyn 2030. Fodd bynnag, 
roedd pecyn cymorth wedi'i gyflwyno a oedd yn galluogi modelu gwahanol 
senarios i lywio'r dull gorau o ran sut i gyrraedd y targed o fod yn Sero Net 
erbyn 2030 yn y ffordd fwyaf effeithiol ac effeithlon. 

  
PENDERFYNWYD:- 
  
5.1 
  
5.2 

derbyn Strategaeth y Gyllideb Refeniw 2023/24 i 2025/26; 
  
derbyn y cynigion ar gyfer cyflawni arbedion effeithlonrwydd fel y nodwyd 
yn Atodiad A(i); 
  

5.3  
  
  

bod y Crynhoad Taliadau ar gyfer Gwasanaethau Diogelu'r Cyhoedd a'r 
Amgylchedd, fel y manylir yn Atodiad C i'r adroddiad, yn cael ei dderbyn; 

5.4  bod y cynnig ar gyfer cyflwyno taliadau parcio yn y 9 maes parcio fel y 
nodir yn yr adroddiad yn cael ei adolygu gan yr Aelod Cabinet fesul achos. 

  
  
 

Tudalen 66



 

 
6. LLAWLYFR CYNNAL A CHADW Y CYNLLUN RHEOLI ASEDAU PRIFFYRDD - 

RHANNAU 4.5, 4.6 A 4.7 
 
Cafodd y Pwyllgor Lawlyfr Cynnal a Chadw'r Cynllun Rheoli Asedau Priffordd i 
gefnogi'r Cynllun Rheoli Asedau Priffyrdd a gyflwynwyd gan yr Aelod Cabinet dros 
Wasanaethau Trafnidiaeth, Gwastraff a Seilwaith. 
Gofynnodd yr adroddiad i'r Pwyllgor ystyried a rhoi sylwadau ar y rhannau canlynol 
sydd ynghlwm wrth yr adroddiad cyn i'r Cabinet ei fabwysiadu. 
  
Rhan 4.5 - Rheoli Draenio Priffyrdd 
Rhan 4.6 - Rheoli Geotechnegol 
Rhan 4.7 - Ymateb Brys ar y Priffyrdd  
  
Codwyd y sylwadau/ymholiadau canlynol ynghylch yr adroddiad:- 
  

• ran cwteri a draeniad, codwyd pryder bod cwteri ar ffyrdd trac sengl wedi'u 
llenwi'n raddol er mwyn osgoi ceir yn disgyn i mewn ac wrth wneud hynny mae 
wedi cael gwared ar allfa hanfodol ar gyfer dŵr sy'n cyfrannu at lifogydd. Yn 
ogystal, deallwyd bod CNC yn hoffi gosod canghennau mewn cwteri er mwyn 
ceisio arafu llif y dŵr.  O ran y sylwadau, gofynnwyd sut y cafodd y rhain eu 
rheoli? 
Esboniodd Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau Priffyrdd a Thrafnidiaeth fod gan y rhan 
fwyaf o gwteri ar hyd y rhwydwaith priffyrdd system swmp.  Y system swmp sydd 
angen bod yn glir er mwyn rheoli llif y dŵr. 
 

• Mewn ymateb i ymholiad ynghylch cyfrifoldebau tirfeddianwyr cyfagos, esboniodd 
Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau Priffyrdd a Thrafnidiaeth, o ran y llif o'r system draenio 
priffyrdd i dir cyfagos, y byddai gan awdurdod priffyrdd hawl ragnodol fel arfer i 
lifo i'r tir.  Fodd bynnag, yn achos dŵr sy'n llifo o dir cyfagos i'r briffordd, 
amlygwyd bod hwn yn fater mwy cymhleth a byddai angen ystyried pob achos. 
 

• ran cyd-gyfrifoldeb CNC a'r Cyngor i gadw dyfrffyrdd yn glir, gofynnwyd sut y 
rheolwyd hyn?  Esboniodd y Pennaeth Priffyrdd a Thrafnidiaeth ei fod yn 
gymhleth ond, yn syml, CNC oedd yn gyfrifol am brif afonydd a chyrsiau dŵr ac 
roedd gan y Cyngor gyfrifoldeb am nentydd llai a sgriniau sbwriel.  Os bydd 
rhybuddion tywydd garw, byddai gwiriadau ar y sgriniau sbwriel perthnasol yn 
cael eu gwneud i sicrhau nad oedd unrhyw ymyrraeth i lif y dŵr. 
 

• Cyfeiriwyd at bibellau draenio a nodwyd yn adran 4.5.2 Gwybodaeth Asedau 
Draenio.  Gofynnwyd pwy oedd yn gyfrifol am bibellau tanddaearol yn y system 
draenio priffyrdd?  Dywedodd y Pennaeth Priffyrdd a Thrafnidiaeth mai un o'r 
materion cyffredin yw gwreiddiau coed yn mynd i mewn i bibellau a bod datrys 
hyn yn gallu defnyddio llawer o adnoddau.  Fel arfer, y tirfeddiannwr cyfagos 
fyddai'n gyfrifol am y goeden ac felly mae'n achos syml, ond yn y mwyafrif o 
achosion byddai'n rhaid i'r Cyngor dderbyn rhywfaint o atebolrwydd. 

  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL dderbyn y Cynllun Rheoli Asedau Priffyrdd 
- Rhannau 4.5, 4.6 a 4.7 
  
 

Tudalen 67



 

 
7. DEDDFWRIAETH TERFYN CYFLYMDER 20MYA LLYWODRAETH CYMRU 

 
Cafodd y Pwyllgor adroddiad ar Ddeddfwriaeth Llywodraeth Cymru ynghylch y 
terfyn cyflymder o 20 mya, a gyflwynwyd gan yr Aelod Cabinet dros Wasanaethau 
Trafnidiaeth, Gwastraff a Seilwaith, oedd yn rhoi'r wybodaeth ddiweddaf am y newid 
yn y ddeddfwriaeth sy'n cael ei gyflwyno gan Lywodraeth Cymru ym mis Medi 
2023.  Byddai'r ddeddfwriaeth yn lleihau'r terfyn cyflymder diofyn 30mya presennol 
ar ffyrdd cyfyngedig (â goleuadau stryd) mewn ardaloedd preswyl i 20mya. 
 
Codwyd y sylwadau/ymholiadau canlynol ynghylch yr adroddiad:- 
 
• Cyfeiriwyd at gyllid grant Llywodraeth Cymru o £797,074 a oedd ar gael yn 

2022/23 ac y byddai ceisiadau pellach yn cael eu gwneud ar gyfer y 
blynyddoedd canlynol ac y rhagwelwyd y byddai hyn yn cyfateb i oddeutu 
£2.16M yn 2023/24.  Gofynnwyd i swyddogion pa mor obeithiol oedden nhw o 
ran sicrhau'r arian grant? Ac os nad oeddent, a fyddai'r arian yn dod o'r 
gyllideb? 

• Esboniodd y Pennaeth Priffyrdd a Thrafnidiaeth, gan fod Llywodraeth Cymru yn 
gwbl ymroddedig i ariannu'r gwaith o weithredu'r ddeddfwriaeth 20mya ynghyd 
â chyfathrebu cadarnhaol, ei fod yn hyderus y byddai'r cais yn llwyddiannus. 
 

• Codwyd pryderon mewn perthynas â'r canlynol:  
-   yr adnoddau a fyddai'n cael eu hymrwymo i weithredu'r newid mewn terfyn 

cyflymder ac;  
-   y gwaith gorfodi sydd ei angen i wella diogelwch.  Gofynnwyd a oedd yn bosibl 

i'r Pwyllgor neu'r Cyngor hwn ysgrifennu at Lywodraeth Cymru i ofyn am 
arian ar gyfer swyddogion gorfodi ychwanegol; 

-   O ran terfynau'r holl ffyrdd 30mya mewn ardaloedd preswyl yn cael eu lleihau i 
20mya gofynnwyd a ellid newid hyn yn ôl-weithredol, os felly sut? 

  
Mewn ymateb, dywedodd Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau Priffyrdd a Thrafnidiaeth 
fod prosiect wedi'i sefydlu i gyflawni'r fenter hon lle cytunwyd i gadw'r gwaith yn 
fewnol yn hytrach na defnyddio ffynonellau allanol drwy ymgynghoriadau.  Y 
manteision oedd bod gan swyddogion wybodaeth ymarferol gadarn am 
derfynau cyflymder, gorchmynion rheoleiddio traffig a gwybodaeth leol a 
fyddai'n gwasanaethu'r prosiect a'r cymunedau yn well.  Ar ben hynny, roedd 
amser swyddogion yn cael ei ariannu drwy'r grant.  Wrth gydnabod bod y tîm yn 
fach gydag amser cyfyngedig, i helpu i reoli hyn, wedi'i gynnwys fel rhan o 
gynigion y gyllideb oedd moratoriwm ar Orchmynion Rheoleiddio Traffig tra bod 
y ddeddfwriaeth hon yn cael ei chyflwyno.  Fodd bynnag, rhoddwyd sicrwydd pe 
byddai diogelwch yn bryder sylweddol y byddai'r achos yn cael ei ystyried yn 
unol â hynny. 
  
O ran gorfodi, esboniodd Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau Priffyrdd a Thrafnidiaeth, er 
y gellid gorfodi drwy'r Heddlu a'r Bartneriaeth Gan Bwyll yn unig, y byddai pecyn 
adnoddau ar gael i gymunedau fel rhan o'r fenter a fyddai'n eu galluogi i sefydlu 
mentrau gwylio cyflymder cymunedol.  Byddai cymunedau'n gallu monitro 
cyflymderau gwirioneddol yn hytrach na chyflymderau canfyddedig a datblygu 
arolygon i ddeall lefelau diffyg cydymffurfio.  Gallai'r wybodaeth a gesglir gael ei 
darparu i'r heddlu er mwyn iddyn nhw cymryd y camau priodol.  Roedd y pecyn 
adnoddau hwn wedi'i gynnwys yn y cais. 
  

Tudalen 68



 

Gwnaeth Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau Priffyrdd a Thrafnidiaeth gydnabod y byddai 
problemau yn debygol pan fydd y ddeddfwriaeth mewn grym ym mis Medi 2023, 
o ran barn cymunedau ac mewn rhai achosion efallai y bydd angen adolygu 
terfynau cyflymder.  Pe bai achos i newid terfyn cyflymder gallai hyn ddigwydd 
drwy'r broses Gorchymyn Rheoleiddio Traffig. 

 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL dderbyn yr adroddiad ar Ddeddfwriaeth 
Terfyn Cyflymder 20MYA. 
 

8. STRATEGAETH FARCHOGAETH SIR GAERFYRDDIN 
 
Cafodd y Pwyllgor adroddiad ar y Diweddariad ynghylch Strategaeth Farchogaeth 
Sir Gaerfyrddin, a gyflwynwyd gan yr Aelod Cabinet dros Wasanaethau 
Trafnidiaeth, Gwastraff a Seilwaith.  Roedd datblygu Strategaeth Farchogaeth ar 
gyfer Sir Gaerfyrddin yn ymrwymiad yng Nghynllun Gwella Hawliau Tramwy 
Cyhoeddus Sir Gaerfyrddin 2019-2029.  Roedd swyddogion yn y broses o 
ddatblygu'r Strategaeth Farchogaeth a rhoddwyd yr adroddiad y wybodaeth 
ddiweddaraf am y cynnydd a wnaed. 
 
Codwyd y sylwadau/ymholiadau canlynol ynghylch yr adroddiad:- 
 
•       Wrth gydnabod y rhwydwaith enfawr i'w reoli, codwyd pryder bod yr adran yn 

cael ei thanariannu, a bod angen buddsoddiad pellach cyn i'r rhai o'r llwybrau 
gael eu colli. 
  

•       Dywedwyd y byddai'n fuddiol i'r Strategaeth derfynol gynnwys map llwybrau 
ceffylau.  Yn ogystal, er ei bod yn bleserus nodi bod dros 500 o ymatebion wedi 
dod i law yn dilyn yr arolwg cyhoeddus cynhwysfawr rhwng 21 Mehefin 2021 a 
25 Gorffennaf 2021, gofynnwyd a allai'r Pwyllgor gael crynodeb o'r ymatebion er 
mwyn ystyried y sylwadau a'r data.  Cytunodd y Pennaeth Priffyrdd a 
Thrafnidiaeth. 

  
•       Wrth ddweud nad oedd llawer o lwybrau ceffylau ar ôl mewn rhai ardaloedd, 

gofynnwyd a oedd modd newid llwybrau troed yn llwybrau ceffylau.  Esboniodd 
y Pennaeth Priffyrdd a Thrafnidiaeth, gan fod hyn yn rhywbeth newydd o ran 
Strategaeth Farchogaeth, fod angen gwneud ymchwil er mwyn deall anghenion 
y sector Marchogaeth ymhellach.  Yn dilyn dadansoddi'r wybodaeth a gasglwyd, 
byddai angen ystyried yr adnoddau sydd ar gael er mwyn datblygu strategaeth 
realistig y gellir ei chyflawni.  Hyd nes y bydd y darn hwn o waith wedi'i gwblhau, 
nid oedd modd penderfynu a oedd lefel yr adnoddau ar gael i reoli unrhyw 
newidiadau i'r llwybrau troed/llwybrau ceffylau. 

 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL dderbyn y Diweddariad ynghylch 
Strategaeth Farchogaeth Sir Gaerfyrddin. 
  
 

Tudalen 69



 

 
9. EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL 

 
Ystyriodd y Pwyllgor y rhestr o eitemau i gael eu cynnwys ar yr agenda ar gyfer y 
cyfarfod nesaf oedd i'w gynnal ar 24 Chwefror 2023 a rhoddwyd cyfle i'r Pwyllgor 
wneud cais am unrhyw wybodaeth benodol yr hoffai'r Aelodau ei chynnwys yn yr 
adroddiadau. 
  
Yn ogystal â'r adroddiadau a oedd i'w cyflwyno yng nghyfarfod ffurfiol y Pwyllgor 
Craffu ar 24 Chwefror, nododd yr Aelodau'r adroddiadau a fyddai hefyd yn cael eu 
dosbarthu iddynt y tu allan i broses ffurfiol y Pwyllgor i graffu. 
  
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL dderbyn y rhestr o'r eitemau i'w hystyried 
yng nghyfarfod nesaf y Pwyllgor ar 24 Chwefror 2023. 
  

10. LLOFNODI YN GOFNOD CYWIR COFNODION Y CYFARFOD A GYNHALIWYD 
AR 15 RHAGFYR 2022 
 
PENDERFYNWYD llofnodi cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor a gynhaliwyd ar 15 
Rhagfyr 2022 yn gofnod cywir.  
  
  
 

 
________________________    __________________ 
CADEIRYDD       DYDDIAD 
 

Tudalen 70


	Agenda
	4 STRATEGAETH COED A CHOETIR AR GYFER CYNGOR SIR CAERFYRDDIN 2023-2028
	4 STRATEGAETH COED A CHOETIR AR GYFER CYNGOR SIR CAERFYRDDIN 2023-2028
	Strategaeth Coed a Choetir ar Gyfer

	5 LEFELAU FFOSFFADAU MEWN ARDALOEDD CADWRAETH ARBENNIG AFONOL GWARCHODEDIG - DIWEDDARIAD
	5 LEFELAU FFOSFFADAU MEWN ARDALOEDD CADWRAETH ARBENNIG AFONOL GWARCHODEDIG - DIWEDDARIAD
	Adroddiad

	6 EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL
	6 EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL
	List of Forthcoming Items - 14-4-23

	6 EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL
	Items circulated to the Committee under separate cover since the last meeting held on 15TH DECEMBER 2022

	6 EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL
	PS&CC FWP 2022-23 - v3

	7 LLOFNODI YN GOFNOD CYWIR COFNODION Y CYFARFOD A GYNHALIWYD AR 23 IONAWR 2023

